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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
GLOSSARY
The following terms are frequently used in the t&this report and have the meanings indicatedvbel

“Used Core” — An alternator or starter which hasmesed in the operation of a vehicle. Generdily,Used Core is an original equipment (“OE”)
alternator or starter installed by the vehicle nfacwrer and subsequently removed for replacenused Cores contain salvageable parts which are a
important raw material in the remanufacturing psscéVe obtain most Used Cores by providing creditsur customers for Used Cores returned to us
under our core exchange program. Our customers/eetteese Used Cores from consumers who delivesead \Core to obtain credit from our
customers upon the purchase of a newly remanutiternator or starter. When sufficient Used €a@annot be obtained from our customers, we
will purchase Used Cores from core brokers, whdratke business of buying and selling Used Coras.Used Cores purchased from core brokers or
returned to us by our customers under the coreamgahprogram, and which have been physically redddy us, are part of our raw material or work

in process inventory included in long-term coreeintory.

“Remanufactured Core” — The Used Core underlyinglégrnator or starter that has gone through thereifacturing process and through that
process has become part of a newly remanufactlierti@or or starter. The remanufacturing procakes a Used Core, breaks it down into its
component parts, replaces those components thaotha reused and reassembles the salvageable sentp@f the Used Core and additional new
components into a remanufactured alternator otestdRemanufactured Cores are included in our ovttfimished goods inventory and in the
remanufactured finished good product held for aaleustomer locations. Used Cores returned by enessito our customers but not yet returned to us
continue to be classified as Remanufactured Carswe physically receive these Used Cores. AliRaufactured Cores are included in our long-
term core inventory or in our long-term core inv@gtdeposit.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all refeesnia this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “the Compd “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Motorcar
Parts ofAmerica, Inc. and its subsidiaries. This Form 10Ky contain forward-looking statements within thesaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Acof 1995. Such forward-looking statements involsksiand uncertainties. Our actual results may d#fgnificantly from the
results discussed in any forward-looking statemebiscussions containing such forward-looking stagats may be found in the material set forth
under “ltem 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analg$iBinancial Condition and Results of Operationags well as within this Form 10-K generally.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, gretatements and other information with the Seiasriand Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Our SEC
filings are available free of charge to the publer the Internet at the SEC’s websitevatw.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also available free of charge
on our websitevww.motorcarparts.con¥ou may also read and copy any document we fila e SEC at its Public Reference Room at 100rEe§
NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SE8GQ) SE(-0330 for further information on the operation loé tPublic Reference Room.

PART |
Item 1. Business
General

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideditwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§#1Y”) market, which is generally serviced by
the large retail chain outlets. Consumers who pselparts from the DIY channel generally instattpanto their vehicles themselves. In most cases,
this is a cheaper alternative than having the rggaformed by a professional installer. The seamadket is the professional installer market,
commonly known as the do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) markdthis market is serviced by the retail chains,itradal warehouse distributors and the dealer
networks. Generally, the consumer in this charmal professional parts installer.

We remanufacture and produce new alternators anst for import and domestic cars, light trudiesavy duty, agricultural and industrial
applications. These products are distributed tb ttwe DIY and DIFM markets. Our products are disttéd predominantly throughout the United
States and Canada. Our products are sold to thestaauto parts retail chains in the United StatesCanada, including Advance, AutoZone, Genuine
Parts (NAPA), O'Reilly Automotive and Pep Boys.dddition, our products are sold to various tradaiiovarehouses for the professional installers,
and to major automobile manufacturers for bothrthfermarket programs and their warranty replacgmeograms (“OES”). Auto parts retail chains
in total, currently account for approximately 36%lee North American after-market for remanufactusdternators and starters.

Demand and replacement rates for after-market refaatured alternators and starters generally irser@dth increases in miles driven and the age of
vehicles. According to industry statistics, both #verage age of vehicles on the road and milgsrdin North America have increased during fiscal
2011 as compared to fiscal 2010.

We have coverage for almost every alternator aardestused by any automobile light and heavy dutgkt as well as most industrial and agricultural
vehicles or equipment. We have warehousing stredlgilocated around North America and in Mexicatibw us to be able to complete distribution
to almost any customer in North America.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlsieed, a substantial portion of our sales from a
small number of large customers. During fiscal 2GHles to our four largest customers constitupguiaximately 81% of our net sales. To mitigate the
risk associated with this concentration of sales yave increasingly sought to enter into longemtenstomer agreements with our major customers.
These longer-term agreements typically require@uwotnmit a significant amount of our working capttabuild inventory and increase production. In
addition, they typically include marketing and athowances that adversely impact neam revenue. Such agreements with new customeysatse
require us to incur certain changeover expenses.
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During fiscal 2011, we made secured loans in thpe@pmate aggregate amount of $4,863,000 to Fenwigkmotive Products Limited (“Fenco”), a
privately-owned Toronto-based manufacturer, remaetufer and distributor of new and remanufactufestmarket auto parts. In connection with
these loans, we had an option to acquire a sulstammership interest in Fenco. In May 2011, parduo a purchase agreement with FAPL Holdings
Inc. ("FAPL”"), Fenco’s parent company, and certaiher individuals, we acquired all of the outstamgdéquity of FAPL’s subsidiaries. In connection
with this acquisition, we advanced an additiond,$00,000 to Fenco. We believe this transactioniges us opportunities to expand beyond our
existing product lines of alternators and staréens further enhance our market presence in Norterfoa (see Note 3 and Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements).

Company Products

Our total net sales is primarily derived from sgjlremanufactured alternators and starters for ibgal domestic cars and light trucks. Alternasore
starters are non-elective replacement parts imakes and models of vehicles because they arereeldoir a vehicle to operate. Currently,
approximately 89% of our units are sold for resalder customer private labels. The balance iswwadr our Quality-Buil®, Talon®, Xtreme®,
Reliance™, and other brand names.

Our alternators and starters are produced to mestoeed original equipment manufacturer specifioat We remanufacture alternators and starters
for virtually all import and domestic vehicles satdthe United States and Canada. Remanufactugngrglly creates a supply of parts at a lower cost
to the end user than newly manufactured parts alemavailable automotive parts which are no longanufactured as new. Our remanufactured
parts are sold at competitively lower prices tharstmew replacement parts.

We recycle nearly all materials in keeping with éagus of positively impacting the environment. Ngall parts, including metal from the Used
Cores, and corrugated packaging are recycled.

The technology and the specifications for the comepds used in our products, particularly alterrgtbave become more advanced in response to the
installation in vehicles of an increasing numbeelefctrical components such as navigation systkaydess entry devices, heated rear windows and
seats, high-powered stereo systems and DVD plagera.result of this increased electrical demattdrreators require more advanced technology and
higher grade components and per unit sales priceplacement alternators have increased accogdifigle increasing complexity of cars and light
trucks and the number of different makes and moafetisese vehicles have resulted in a significaatéase in the number of different alternators and
starters required to service import and domestis aad light trucks. In addition to the over 3,4086ck keeping units (“SKUs") for heavy duty and a
variety of agricultural and industrial applicatiomge carry over 3,900 SKUs which cover applicatiforamost import and domestic cars and light
trucks sold in the United States and Canada.

Customers: Customer Concentration

Our products are marketed throughout the UniteteStand Canada. Currently, we serve all of theektreetail automotive chain stores with an
aggregate of approximately 12,500 retail outlete/alb as a diverse group of automotive warehousgidutors and OES customers.

We are substantially dependent upon sales to ojarmastomers. During fiscal 2011, 2010 and 20@8ssto our four largest customers constituted
approximately 81%, 85% and 92%, respectively, ofrat sales, and sales to our largest customerZaui, constituted 48%, 44% and 49%,
respectively, of our net sales. Any meaningful aidun in the level of sales to any of these cust@ngeterioration of any customer’s financial
condition or the loss of a customer could have terialy adverse impact upon us.
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Customer Arrangements; Impact on Working Capital

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeittsmany of our major customers. Under these agesesnwhich typically have initial terms of at
least four years, we are designated as the exelasiprimary supplier for specified categorieseshanufactured alternators and starters. Becaube
very competitive nature of the market for remantufeed starters and alternators and the limited rarmmbcustomers for these products, our customers
have sought and obtained price concessions, signifimarketing allowances and more favorable delisad payment terms in consideration for our
designation as a customer’s exclusive or primappber. These incentives differ from contract totact and can include (i) the issuance of a
specified amount of credits against receivableacitordance with a schedule set forth in the relesantract, (ii) support for a particular custonser’
research or marketing efforts provided on a scheztlbbsis, (iii) discounts granted in connectiorhveiach individual shipment of product, and (iv)
other marketing, research, store expansion or ptatkvelopment support. We have also entered greements to purchase certain customers’
Remanufactured Core inventory and to issue crédlipgy for that inventory according to a schedeleferth in the agreements. These contracts
typically require that we meet ongoing standardtsted to fulfillment, price, and quality. Our coatts with major customers expire at various dates
through March 2019.

These longer-term agreements strengthen our cust@magonships and business base. The increasedrdkefor product as a result of entering into
these longer-term agreements often requires th@evease our inventories, accounts payable arebpeel. Customer demands that we purchase thei
Remanufactured Core inventory have also been &ismnt and an additional strain on our availablerking capital. The marketing and other
allowances we typically grant our customers in @mion with our new or expanded customer relatigrshdversely impact the near-term revenues,
profitability and associated cash flows from thasangements. However, we believe the investmenhalee in these new or expanded customer
relationships will improve our overall liquidity drcash flow from operations over time.

Competition

The after-market for remanufactured alternatorssiaders is highly competitive. Our most signifitaompetitors are a division of Remy
International, Inc. and BBB Industries. We also pete with several medium-sized remanufacturersadadgye number of smaller regional and
specialty remanufacturers. Overseas manufactyarscularly those located in China, are increasir operations and could become a significant
competitive force in the future.

We believe that the reputation for quality and oosr service that a supplier enjoys are signifiactors in a customer’s purchase decision. We
believe that these factors favor our company, whidvides quality replacement automotive produetsid and reliable delivery capabilities as well as
promotional support. We believe that our abilityptovide efficient delivery distinguishes us fronamy of our competitors and provides a competitive
advantage. Price and payment terms are also vegrgritamt competitive factors.

For the most part, our products have not been pateror do we believe that our products are pabdat&Ve seek to protect our proprietary processes
and other information by relying on trade secretsland nordisclosure and confidentiality agreements withaiarbf our employees and other pers
who have access to that information.

Company Operations

Production ProcessOur remanufacturing process begins with the readipsed alternators and starters, commonly knasvityaed Cores”, from our
customers or core brokers. The Used Cores areatedlfior inventory control purposes and then sditedart number. Each Used Core is completely
disassembled into its fundamental components. Bhgonents are cleaned in a process that employenaized equipment and cleaning materials in
accordance with the required specifications ofpthdicular component. All components known to bigject to major wear and those components
determined not to be reusable or repairable alaced by new components. Non-salvageable componétiite Used Core are sold as scrap.
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After the cleaning process is complete, the salzbigecomponents of the Used Core are inspectetkatetl as prescribed by our ISO TS 16949
approved quality control program, which is implerteghthroughout the production process. ISO TS 16949 internationally recognized, world cle
automotive quality system. Upon passage of albteghich are monitored by designated quality cdmgessonnel, all the component parts are
assembled in a work cell into a finished produtsplection and testing are conducted at multipigestaf the remanufacturing process, and each
finished product is inspected and tested on equipihesigned to simulate performance under operatingitions. Finished products are either stored
in our warehouse facility or packaged for immedgigoment. To maximize remanufacturing efficienag, store component parts ready for assembly
in our warehousing facilities. Our management imfation systems, including hardware and softwamlitae the remanufacturing process from Used
Cores to finished products.

Our remanufacturing processes combine product iesniith similar configurations into dedicated fagtwork cells. This remanufacturing process,
known as “lean manufacturing”, replaced the maaeitional assembly line approach we had previouslized and eliminated a large number of
inventory moves and the need to track inventory enoent through the remanufacturing process. This teanufacturing process is used at all of our
production facilities. Because of this “lean mamtfi@ing” approach, we significantly reduced thediintakes to produce a finished product. We
continue to explore opportunities for improvingiegncies in our remanufacturing process.

Offshore Remanufacturing. The majority of our remanufacturing operations aack sorting functions are now conducted at outifi@s in Mexico
and Malaysia. We continue to maintain productionemhanufactured units that require specializediseand/or rapid turnaround in our U.S. facility.
We also operate a shipping and receiving warehandeesting facility in Singapore. Our foreign agt@ns produced approximately 99% of our total
unit production during fiscal 2011 and 2010.

Used Cores and Other Raw MaterialsThe majority of our Used Cores are obtained frosta@mers using our core exchange program. The core
exchange program consists of the following steps:

*  Our customers purchase from us a remanufacturedoubé sold to their consumt
»  Our customers offer their consumers a credit ttherge their used unit (Used Core) at the time ¢mswumer purchases a remanufactured
* We, in turn, offer our customers a credit to seadhese Used Cores. The credit reduces our accamagivable

Our customers are not obligated to send us alUgex Cores exchanged by their consumers. We hataribally purchased approximately 15% to
20% of our Used Cores in the open market from boo&ers who specialize in buying and selling UsedeS. During fiscal 2011, we purchased
approximately 19% of our Used Cores from core breka&lthough the open market is not a primary sewtUsed Cores, it is a critical source for
meeting our raw material demands. Not all Used €are reusable. Remanufacturing consumes, on ajaregge than one Used Core for each
remanufactured unit produced. Although the yietdsalepend upon both the product and customerfgagicins, our overall average yield rates are
about 83%. We use about 120 Used Cores to provitieisnt salvageable components to complete 1@taraifactured products.

The price of a finished product sold to our custmig generally comprised of an amount for remattufing (“unit value) and an amount separately
invoiced for the Remanufactured Core included enpghoduct (“Remanufactured Core charge”). The Rerfzatured Core charge is equal to the credit
we offer to induce the customer to use our cordange program and send back the Used Cores to ascbordance with our net-of-covalue revenu
recognition policy, at the time a sale is recordeel ,only recognize as revenue the unit value ofitlighed product. We also record as long-term core
inventory the cost of Remanufactured Cores includdte finished goods that are shipped to custerard that we expect to be sent back to us as par
of the core exchange program. During fiscal 20ppreximately 96% of the Remanufactured Cores wepsd as part of finished goods were replaced
by similar Used Cores sent back to us under o erchange program, resulting in the issuanceedfitsrequal to the related Remanufactured Core
value.
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Other materials and components used in remanufagtare purchased in the open market. During fi264all, 2010 and 2009, our main supplier
provided approximately 13%, 29% and 25%, respelgtivé our raw materials purchased, and we relyr@t supplier’s ability to provide us with raw
materials in a timely and cost effective mannewyéeer, that supplier is not our sole supplier o raaterials. No other supplier provided more than
10% of our raw material needs during these periods.

The ability to obtain Used Cores, materials and moments of the types and quantities we need isigak® our ability to meet demand.

Return Rights. Under our customer agreements and general indpisintice, our customers are allowed stock adjustsnghen their inventory of
certain product lines exceeds the inventory necgssaupport sales to end-user consumers. Cussonaae various contractual rights for stock
adjustments which range from 3%-5% of total uniislsin some instances, we allow a higher levektdirns in connection with a significant update
order. In addition, we allow customers to returedmto us that their end-user consumers have egtumthem. This general right of return is allowed
regardless of whether the returned item is defectiVe seek to limit the aggregate of stock adjustraad other customer returns to less than 20% of
unit sales. Stock adjustment returns do not octanw specific time during the year.

As is standard in the industry, we only acceptrrefidirom on-going customers. If a customer ceasagydusiness with us, we have no further
obligation to accept additional product returnsrfrthat customer. Similarly, we accept product metuand grant appropriate credits from new
customers from the time the new customer relatipnishestablished. This obligation to accept resudrom new customers does not result in decreasec
liquidity or increased expenses since we only aceep returned product for each unit sold to the oestomer. In each case, the return must be
received by us in the original box of the unit sold

We provide for the anticipated returns of inventbyyreducing revenue and cost of sales for theuatite of goods sold based on a historical return
analysis and information obtained from customeruaburrent stock levels and anticipated stockstdjent returns.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution. We have one of the widest varieties of alternatar starter lines available to the market, and weketaand
distribute our products throughout the United Statled Canada. Our products for the automotivel itain market are primarily sold under our
customers’ private labels. Since fiscal 2004, weehexpanded our sales efforts beyond automotiadl iains to include warehouse distribution
centers serving professional installers. Our prtslace also sold under our own Quality-B8iltTalon®, Xtreme®, Reliance™, and other brand
names. We ship our products from facilities in Bore, California, and Tijuana, Mexico, and from fesrehouse facilities in Edison, New Jersey and
Springfield, Oregon. In addition, we also use avi@eehouse distribution facility in Berlin, Conniecit.

We publish, for print and electronic distributi@ancatalog with part numbers and applications faradiernators and starters along with a detailed
technical glossary and informational database. @iebe that we maintain one of the most extensatalog and product identification systems
available to the market.

Employees As of March 31, 2011, we had 243 employees in thited States, as compared to 247 at March 31, Zuttantially all of whom were
located in Torrance, California. Of our U.S.-basetployees, 100 are administrative personnel of wBic are sales personnel. In addition, at March
31, 2011, we had 258 employees in Singapore andydial, as compared to 320 employees at March 3D, 2Md 1,188 employees at our facility
located in Mexico, as compared to 1,195 employe®taach 31, 2010. A union represents all hourly Epees at our Mexico facility. All other
employees, including our employees in Torranceif@ala, are non-union. We consider our relatiorithwur employees to be satisfactory.
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Seasonality of Business

Due to their nature and design, as well as thddiofitechnology, alternators and starters tradily have failed when operating in extreme coodi
During the summer months, when the temperatureajlgiincreases over a sustained period of tinterrsdtors were more likely to fail. Similarly,
during winter months when extreme cold conditioresexperienced over a sustained period, startens mere likely to fail. This seasonality impact
has been diminished by the improvement in the tyuafialternators and starters and does not cuyrbate a material impact on our net sales.

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state acal laws and regulations governing, among othemgthiemissions to air, discharge to waters, and the
generation, handling, storage, transportationtrreat and disposal of waste and other materialsb®lleve that our businesses, operations and
facilities have been and are being operated in damge in all material respects with applicableiemvmental and health and safety laws and
regulations, many of which provide for substarfiias and criminal sanctions for violations. Poiglht significant expenditures, however, could be
required in order to comply with evolving environmt@ and health and safety laws, regulations onirements that may be adopted or imposed in the
future.

Evaluation of Strategic Options

We are continuing to evaluate strategic optionsweamight pursue to enhance shareholder valuesélbeuld include an acquisition of another
company or a sale of our company to a third pdiere is no assurance, however, that we will @nterany transaction as a result of our effortthis
regard.

During fiscal 2011, we made secured loans in thE@mate aggregate amount of $4,863,000 to FeHrese loans provided an option to acquire a
substantial ownership interest in Fenco. In Mayl2®le acquired all of the outstanding equity of EARsubsidiaries. In connection with this
acquisition, we advanced an additional $10,000t6@8enco. We believe this transaction providespmodunities to expand beyond our existing
product lines of alternators and starters and &rémhance our market presence in North AmericaNs¢te 3 and Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements).

Additionally, to further enhance shareholder valandylarch 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,0¢

our outstanding common stock from time to timehi@ bpen market and in private transactions at pdeemed appropriate by management. There is
no expiration date governing the period over whighcan repurchase shares under this program. Diisicey 2011, we repurchased 14,400 shares at ¢
total cost of approximately $89,000.




Table of Content
Ite m 1A. Risk Factors

While we believe the risk factors described belosvadl the material risks currently facing our bosss, additional risks we are not presently awdre o
or that we currently believe are immaterial mayaaipair our business operations. Our financial dition or results of operations could be
materially and adversely impacted by these risks, the trading price of our common stock could Beeaisely impacted by any of these risks. In
assessing these risks, you should also refer tottier information included in or incorporated bgference into this Form 10-K, including our
consolidated financial statements and related ntteseto appearing elsewhere or incorporated bgmerfice in this Form 10-K.

We rely on a few major customersfor a significant majority of our business, and the loss of any of these customers, significant changesin the prices,
marketing allowances or other important terms provided to any of our major customers or adver se developments with respect to the financial
condition of any of our major customers would reduce our net income and operating results.

Our net sales are concentrated among a small nupfiteige customers. During fiscal 2011, salesuofour largest customers constituted
approximately 81% of our net sales, and sales tdaogest customer constituted approximately 48%usfnet sales. Because our sales are
concentrated, and the market in which we operaterig competitive, we are under ongoing presswefour customers to offer lower prices, exter
payment terms, increased marketing allowances tret terms more favorable to these customers. Ttietemer demands have put continued
pressure on our operating margins and profitabitégulted in periodic contract renegotiation toyide more favorable prices and terms to these
customers and significantly increased our workiagi@l needs. In addition, this customer conceiotndeaves us vulnerable to any adverse change in
the financial condition of any of our major customerhe loss or significant decline of sales to ahgur major customers would reduce our net
income and adversely affect our operating results.

Our offshore remanufacturing and logistic activities expose us to increased political and economic risks and place a greater burden on management
to achieve quality standards.

Our overseas operations, especially our operatiomguana, Mexico, increase our exposure to paiti criminal or economic instability in the host
countries and to currency fluctuations.

The complexity associated with the accounting for our operating results may continue to cause fluctuationsin our reported operating results.

Because we receive most Used Cores, a criticalmafaeturing component, through the core exchanggram with our customers and we offer
marketing allowances and other incentives that ohpavenue recognition, the accounting for our apens is more complex than for many businesses
the same size or larger.

Interruptions or delaysin obtaining component parts could impair our business and adversely affect our operating results.

In our remanufacturing processes, we obtain Used<Cprimarily through the core exchange prograth wiir customers, and component parts from
third-party manufacturers. Historically, the lee¢lUsed Core returns from customers together wititipases from core brokers have provided us with
an adequate supply of this key component. If tinaae a significant disruption in the supply of Usaares, whether as a result of increased Used Core
acquisitions by existing or new competitors or ot¥ise, our operating activities would be materiahd adversely impacted. In addition, a number of
the other components used in the remanufacturiogegs are available from a very limited numberpfdiers. During fiscal 2011, we purchased 13%
of our raw materials from a single supplier. We, aea result, vulnerable to any disruption in congnt supply, and any meaningful disruption in this
supply would materially and adversely impact oueraping results.
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Increasesin the market prices of key component raw materials could negatively impact our profitability.

In light of the long-term, continuous pressure acipg which we have experienced from our majortooeers, we may not be able to recoup the higher
prices which raw materials, particularly aluminundaopper, may command in the market-place. Webelihe impact of higher raw material prices,
which is outside our control, is mitigated to soexéent because we recover a substantial porti@uiofaw materials from Used Cores returned to us
by our customers through the core exchange progtamvever, we are unable to determine what advenpadt, if any, sustained raw material price
increases may have on our profitability.

Substantial and potentially increasing competition could reduce our market share and significantly harm our financial performance.

While we believe we are well-positioned in the neror remanufactured alternators and starters nti@irket is very competitive. In addition, other
overseas manufacturers, particularly those locat€hina, are increasing their operations and cbeltbme a significant competitive force in the
future. We may not be successful competing agaihstr companies, some of which are larger thamdshave greater financial and other resources at
their disposal. Increased competition could puttémithl pressure on us to reduce prices or takerathtions which may have an adverse effect on our
operating results.

Our financial results are affected by alternator and starter failure rates that are outside our control.

Our operating results are affected by alternatdrsaarter failure rates. These failure rates apatted by a number of factors outside our control,
including alternator and starter designs that hasalted in greater reliability, consumers drivieg/er miles as a result of both high gasoline prigec
the slowdown in the U.S. economy, and the averggeo&vehicles on the road. A reduction in theufiglrates of alternators or starters would adve
affect our sales and profitability.

Our operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

We have experienced significant variations in curial and quarterly results of operations. Thasetdhtions have resulted from many factors,
including shifts in the demand and pricing for pooducts and general economic conditions, includimanges in prevailing interest rates. Our gross
profit percentage fluctuates due to numerous facgome of which are outside our control. Thestfadnclude the timing and level of marketing
allowances provided to our customers, differeneae/ben the level of projected sales to a particziatomer and the actual sales during the relevant
period, pricing strategies, the mix of productglsiliring a reporting period, fluctuations in thedkof Used Core returns during the period, ancegal
market and competitive conditions.

Our bank may not waive future defaults under our credit agreement.

Over the past several years, we have violated daupf the financial and other covenants containeslr bank credit agreement. To this point, the
bank has been willing to waive these covenant disfand to do so without imposing any significaostcor penalty on us. If we fail to meet the
financial covenants or the other obligations sehfan our bank credit agreement in the futureretis no assurance that the bank will waive any suc
defaults.

Our level of indebtedness and the terms of our indebtedness could adversely affect our business and liquidity position.
Our indebtedness may increase substantially froma tb time for various reasons, including fluctoasi in operating results, marketing allowances
provided to customers, capital expenditures angdiplesacquisitions. Our indebtedness could mategréadfect our business because (i) a portion of our

cash flow must be used to service debt ratherfihance our operations, (ii) it may eventually inrpaur ability to obtain financing in the futurenc
(iii) it may reduce our flexibility to respond tdvanges in business and economic conditions oradkantage of business opportunities that may arise.
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Our largest shareholder hasthe ability to influence all matters requiring the approval of our Board of Directors and our shareholders.

As of June 6, 2011, Mel Marks, our founder and mend our Board of Directors, beneficially owne®%. of our outstanding common stock. As a
result of his holdings, Mel Marks has the abilityetxercise substantial influence over us and héests may conflict with the interests of other
shareholders.

Our stock price may be volatile and could decline substantially.

Our stock price may decline substantially as alteguhe volatile nature of the stock market ariden factors beyond our control. The stock market
has, from time to time, experienced extreme primt\alume fluctuations. Many factors may causentlaeket price for our common stock to decline,
including (i) our operating results failing to mele¢ expectations of securities analysts or investoany quarter, (ii) downward revisions in sébes
analysts’ estimates, (iii) market perceptions comicg our future earnings prospects, (iv) publiesaf a substantial number of shares of our common
stock, and (v) adverse changes in general markelittons or economic trends.

Our failureto maintain effective internal controlsin accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 could have a material adverse
effect on our business and the price of our common stock.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“3Q¥quires our management to assess the effeetdgeof our internal control over financial
reporting at the end of each fiscal year and gewtliether or not internal control over financigboeting is effective. Our independent accountargs a
also required to express an opinion with respetiteceffectiveness of our internal controls. Weestmur SOX compliance work will continue to
require significant commitment of management time the incurrence of significant general and adstiiative expenses.

Unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect us.

We are exposed to market risk from material movemenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign countries in
which we operate. As a result of our extensive af@ns in Mexico, our primary risk relates to chasdn the rates between the U.S. dollar and the
Mexican peso. To mitigate this currency risk, wéeeimto forward foreign exchange contracts to exaje U.S. dollars for Mexican pesos. The extent
to which we use forward foreign exchange contracperiodically reviewed in light of our estimateroarket conditions and the terms and length of
anticipated requirements. The use of derivativarfoial instruments allows us to reduce our expogutiee risk that the eventual net cash outflow
resulting from funding the expenses of the foregerations will be materially affected by changethie exchange rates. We do not engage in cur
speculation or hold or issue financial instrumdatgrading purposes. These contracts expire iea gr less. Any change in the fair value of foneig
exchange contracts is accounted for as an incaradecrease to general and administrative expénsesrent period earnings.

We may continue to make strategic acquisitions of other companies or businesses and these acquisitionsintroduce significant risks and
uncertainties, including risks related to integrating the acquired businesses and achieving benefits from the acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggrafvth opportunities, we have made, and may coatio make, strategic acquisitions that involve
significant risks and uncertainties. These risksd @mcertainties include: (i) the difficulty in irgeating newly-acquired businesses and operations in
efficient and effective manner, (ii) the challengesichieving strategic objectives, cost savings @ther benefits from acquisitions, (iii) the pdiah

loss of key employees of the acquired businessgghé risk of diverting the attention of senioenmagement from our operations, (v) risks associated
with integrating financial reporting and internaintrol systems, (vi) difficulties in expanding imfieation technology systems and other business
processes to accommodate the acquired businesskeiig future impairments of goodwill of an acged business.
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Deteriorating conditionsin the global credit markets and macroeconomic factors could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

The significant deterioration in the financial cdiah of financial institutions has resulted inevsre loss of liquidity and availability in globededit
markets and in higher shagrm borrowing costs, and more stringent borrowtergns. Recessionary conditions in the global econtinreaten to caus
further tightening of the credit markets, morergjent lending standards and terms, and higherilitylan interest rates. The persistence of these
conditions could have a material adverse effeawrborrowings and the availability, terms and adstuch borrowings. In addition, further
deterioration in the U.S. economy could adverséfycaour corporate results, which could adversdfgct our operating results.

Ite m 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

It em 2. Properties

We lease all of the real property used in our dpmra. We presently lease approximately 147,00@steet of warehouse, production and
administrative space in Torrance, California. Thespnt term of the lease expires March 31, 2012xendave the option to extend the lease for an
additional five years beginning April 1, 2012. Wealease approximately 4,005 square feet adjaoemir main Torrance facility that is used as
additional office and record storage space. Theel@a this second building has terms which coingiitle the lease on the main Torrance building.
On October 28, 2004, we entered into a build-tédsaise covering approximately 125,000 squaredegidustrial premises in Tijuana, Mexico. The
lease has a term of 10 years from the date thlityasas available for occupancy, and we have amapo extend the lease term for two additional 5-
year periods. In May 2005, we took possession@galpremises. In April 2006, we leased an additiéh®00 square feet adjoining our existing sp
On October 18, 2006, we entered into an amendrdease an adjacent 125,000 square feet. This sgggeccupied in January 2007 and is used for
core receiving, sorting and storage related funstié\ll amendments have the same essential terihe asiginal lease.

In addition, we occupy approximately 53,000 sqdeet of leased remanufacturing, warehousing, afideo$pace facilities under six separate leases,
which expire on various dates through October 8132in Singapore and Malaysia.

We also lease 2,067 square feet of office spabiashville, Tennessee under a lease that expirésayr31, 2012.

In June 2010, we entered into a lease coveringoappately 1,875 square feet of warehousing facititBerlin, Connecticut that expires on May 31,
2012. This lease agreement provides us with amopd terminate this lease anytime with three m@mikitten notice to the landlord.

We believe the above mentioned facilities are sidffit to satisfy our foreseeable warehousing, petdn, distribution and administrative office space
requirements for our current operations.

It em 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings arigirige normal course of conducting business. Mamamnt does not believe that the outcome of t
matters will have a material adverse impact ofintencial position or future results of operations.

It em 4. Reserved

Not applicable
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PART II
Ite m 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the National Assmriatf Securities Dealers Automated Quotation (“ND¥8") Global Select Market under the
trading symbol MPAA. The following table sets fottie high and low sale prices for our common sthaling fiscal 2011 and 2010.

Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 2010
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $ 748 $ 57t % 49t % 3.54
2nd Quarte $ 9.0C $ 6.01 $ 551 $ 3.8¢
3rd Quarte! $ 131t $ 87z $ 551 $ 4.54
4th Quartel $ 151C $ 123t % 6.6 $ 4.8¢

As of June 6, 2011, there were 12,438,271 sharesrofmon stock outstanding held by 31 holders adnecWe have never declared or paid dividends
on our common stock. The declaration of any prasgedividends is at the discretion of the Boardafectors and will be dependent upon sufficient
earnings, capital requirements and financial pmsjtgeneral economic conditions, state law requér@mand other relevant factors. Additionally, our
agreement with our lenders prohibit the paymemtiztiends, except stock dividends, without the Bxstprior consent.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program of up to $5,000,000 obwistanding common stock from time to time
in the open market and in private transactiongiaep deemed appropriate by management. Theredgpimation date governing the period over wt
we can repurchase shares under this program. Dfisiteg 2011, we repurchased 14,400 shares abbdmst of approximately $89,000.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compeinsaplans as of March 31, 2011:

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future issuance
securities to be Weighted- under equity
issued upon average exercise ~ compensation
exercise of price of plans (excluding
outstanding outstanding securities
options, warrants options warrants reflected in
Plan Category and rights and rights column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by securiti¢dens 1,591,08(1) $ 8.61 837,00((2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,591,008 $ 8.61 837,00(

() Consists of options issued pursuant to our 199pI&ee Stock Option Plan, 1996 Employee Stock @pfitan, 1994 Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan, 2003 Lo-Term Incentive Plan and 2004 N-Employee Director Stock Option Ple
@ Consists of options available for issuance undei26a0 Incentive Award Plan and 2004 I-Employee Director Stock Option Ple
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative retorholders of our common stock for the five yeardieg March 31, 2011 with the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the Zacks Retail and Whole&ate Parts Index. We previously compared our cutivgaeturns to those of a peer group

comprised of other automotive after-market compma@ected by us. Due to trading information fone®f these peer companies no longer being

available, we have selected the Zacks Retail andl®ghle Auto Parts Index for comparison purposesiirperformance graph. The comparison
assumes $100 was invested at the close of busingglarch 31, 2006 in our common stock and in ed¢heocomparison groups, and assumes

reinvestment of dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
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Ite m 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical consolidated fingl information as of and for each of the fispadrs ended March 31, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and
2007, has been derived from and should be readnjuiction with our consolidated financial statemsesmd related notes thereto.

Income Statement Date

Net sales

Operating income (los:

Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per share

Diluted net income (loss) per share

Balance Sheet Dat:

Total asset

Working capital
Revolving loar

Term loan

Capital lease obligatior
Other long term liabilitie:
Shareholdel equity

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 161,285,00 $ 147,225,00 $ 134,866,00 $ 133,337,00 $ 136,323,00
25,384,00 18,307,00 10,642,00 12,751,00 (2,475,001
12,220,00 9,646,001 3,857,001 4,607,00! (4,956,001
$ 1.01 $ 08C $ 03z $ 04C $ (0.59)
$ 09¢ $ 08C $ 03z $ 03¢ $ (0.59)

March 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 191,865,00 $ 163,480,00 $ 159,588,00 $ 141,408,00 $ 131,986,00
1,395,001 3,399,001 (3,569,001 6,097,001 (26,746,00)
- - 21,600,00 - 22,800,000
7,500,001 9,500,001 - - -
834,00( 1,398,001 3,022,001 4,276,00! 5,197,001
9,984,001 7,056,001 7,364,001 4,654,00! 3,859,001
$ 117,177,00 $ 103,620,00 $ 93,083,000 $ 91,093,000 $ 47,828,00
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It em 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations
Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forwalabsking statements with respect to our future panfince that involve risks and uncertainties. Vagitactors coul
cause actual results to differ materially from #hpsojected in such statements. These factorsdaclut are not limited to: concentration of sates
certain customers, changes in our relationship aithof our major customers, the increasing cust@ressure for lower prices and more favorable
payment and other terms, the increasing demandsioworking capital, the significant strain on wimidx capital associated with large Remanufacti
Core inventory purchases from customers, our ghiditobtain any additional financing we may seekequire, our ability to achieve positive cash
flows from operations, potential future changeeun previously reported results as a result ofideatification and correction of errors in our
accounting policies or procedures or the potentiaterial weaknesses in our internal controls owvericial reporting, lower revenues than anticipated
from new and existing contracts, our failure to tibe financial covenants or the other obligatisesforth in our bank credit agreement and the tsank
refusal to waive any such defaults, any meanindjftérence between projected production needs éirdate sales to our customers, increases in
interest rates, changes in the financial conditibany of our major customers, the impact of higsaine prices, the potential for changes in coresum
spending, consumer preferences and general ecormomiitions, increased competition in the autoneopearts industry, including increased
competition from Chinese and other offshore martufacs, difficulty in obtaining Used Cores and cament parts or increases in the costs of those
parts, political, criminal or economic instability any of the foreign countries where we condu@rafions, currency exchange fluctuations, unfone
increases in operating costs and other factorsisiisd herein and in our other filings with the SEC.

Management Overview

The aftermarket for automobile parts is divideditwo markets. The first market is the do-it-yolfr§#1Y”) market, which is generally serviced by
the large retail chain outlets. Consumers who pselparts from the DIY channel generally instattpanto their vehicles themselves. In most cases,
this is a cheaper alternative than having the rggaformed by a professional installer. The seamadket is the professional installer market,
commonly known as the do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) markdthis market is serviced by the retail chains,itradal warehouse distributors and the dealer
networks. Generally, the consumer in this charsal professional parts installer.

We remanufacture and produce new alternators ankt for import and domestic cars, light trudiesavy duty, agricultural and industrial
applications. These products are distributed tb twe DIY and DIFM markets. Our products are disttéd predominantly throughout the United
States and Canada. Our products are sold to thestaauto parts retail chains in the United StatesCanada, including Advance, AutoZone, Genuine
Parts (NAPA), O’'Reilly Automotive and Pep Boys.dddition, our products are sold to various trad#iovarehouses for the professional installers,
and to major automobile manufacturers for bothrthiermarket programs and their warranty replacgrpeograms (“OES”). Auto parts retail chains
in total, currently account for approximately 36%lee North American after-market for remanufactusdternators and starters.

Demand and replacement rates for after-market refaatured alternators and starters generally irser@dth increases in miles driven and the age of
vehicles. According to industry statistics, both #verage age of vehicles on the road and milgsrdin North America have increased during fiscal
2011 as compared to fiscal 2010.

We have coverage for almost every alternator aandestused by any automobile light and heavy dutykt as well as most industrial and agricultural
vehicles or equipment. We have warehousing stredgtigilocated around North America and in Mexicatlow us to be able to complete distribution
to almost any customer in North America.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlsivebd, a substantial portion of our sales from a
small number of large customers. During fiscal 2GHles to our four largest customers constitupgaiaximately 81% of our net sales. To mitigate the
risk associated with this concentration of salesyave increasingly sought to enter into longemtenstomer agreements with our major customers.
These longer-term agreements typically require@utnmit a significant amount of our working capttabuild inventory and increase production. In
addition, they typically include marketing and ath#owances that adversely impact nesam revenue. Such agreements with new customeysaise
require us to incur certain changeover expenses.
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During fiscal 2011, we made secured loans in thpe@pmate aggregate amount of $4,863,000 to Fenwigkmotive Products Limited (“Fenco”), a
privately-owned Toronto-based manufacturer, remaetufer and distributor of new and remanufactufestmarket auto parts. In connection with
these loans, we had an option to acquire a sulstammership interest in Fenco. In May 2011, parduo a purchase agreement with FAPL Holdings
Inc. ("FAPL”"), Fenco’s parent company, and certaiher individuals, we acquired all of the outstamgdéquity of FAPL’s subsidiaries. In connection
with this acquisition, we advanced an additiond,$00,000 to Fenco. We believe this transactioniges us opportunities to expand beyond our
existing product lines of alternators and staréens further enhance our market presence in Norterfoa (see Note 3 and Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements).

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemengeaordance with generally accepted accountingiplies, or GAAP, in the United States. Our
significant accounting policies are discussed imitleelow and in Note 2 in the notes to consobkddinancial statements.

In preparing our consolidated financial statementsuse estimates and assumptions for matteratbanherently uncertain. We base our estimates or
historical experiences and reasonable assumptiunsuse of estimates and assumptions affects gogteel amounts of assets, liabilities and the
amount and timing of revenues and expenses we memfpr and during the reporting period. Actualuks may differ from our estimates.

Our remanufacturing operations require that we medused Cores, a necessary raw material, frontostomers and offer our customers marketing
and other allowances that impact revenue recognifibese elements of our business give rise towetity issues that are more complex than many
businesses our size or larger. In addition, thevesit accounting standards and issues continuenteee

Segment Reporting

We currently operate in one business segment potrsniéhe guidance provided under the Financialobdoting Standards Board (“FASBAccounting
Standards Codification (“ASC").

I nventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process andhtirecore value of finished goods. Used
Cores, the Used Core value of work in process hadkemanufactured Core portion of finished good<hassified as long-term core inventory as
described below under the caption “Long-term Corehtory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid, and is
based upon the direct costs of material and acatilin of labor and variable and fixed overheadscEhe cost of non-core inventory is evaluated at
least quarterly during the fiscal year and adjustedecessary to reflect current lower of cost arket levels. These adjustments are determined for
individual items of inventory within each of thedle classifications of non-core inventory as fokklow

» Non-core raw materials are recorded at average ctéthvis based on the actual purchase price of ratemals on hand. The average cost is

updated quarterly. This average cost is used imtrentory costing process and is the basis facation of materials to finished goods during
the production proces
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» Norn-core work in process is in various stages of petidn, is on average 50% complete and is valué&d% of the cost of a finished good.
Non-core work in process inventory historically compsdess than 3% of the total I-core inventory balanc

» Finished goods cost includes the average costrofcnre raw materials and allocations of labor eariable and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed ovetheasts are determined based on the average aswialf the production facilities over the
prior twelve months which approximates normal cétga®his method prevents the distortion in all@htabor and overhead costs that would
occur during short periods of abnormally low orthjgroduction. In addition, we exclude certain unedited overhead such as severance costs,
duplicative facility overhead costs, and spoilagear the calculation and expense them as period.ceet the fiscal years ended March 31,
2011, 2010, and 2009, costs of approximately $1(8%8 $1,314,000, and $2,019,000, respectivelyewensidered abnormal and thus
excluded from the finished goods cost calculatiod eharged directly to cost of sal

We record an allowance for potentially excess amblete inventory based upon recent sales hidfeeyquantity of inventory on-hand, and a forecast
of potential use of the inventory. We review inévagton a monthly basis to identify excess quargtiied part numbers that are experiencing a
reduction in demand. In general, part numbers githntities representing a one to three-year sugmelyartially reserved for at rates based upon
management’s judgment and consistent with histbratas. Any part numbers with quantities reprasgnmore than a three-year supply are reserved
for at a rate that considers possible scrap amndbliigion values and may be as high as 100% ofitostliquidation market exists for the part.
The quantity thresholds and reserve rates arecidgeand are based on management’s judgment anal&dge of current and projected industry
demand. The reserve estimates may, thereforeyvisedeif there are changes in the overall markebfo products or market changes that in
management’s judgment, impact our ability to seliquidate potentially excess or obsolete inveytor
We record vendor discounts as a reduction of irorgag that are recognized as a reduction to cosalet as the inventories are sold.
Inventory Unreturnet
Inventory unreturned represents our estimate, basédstorical data and prospective informationvited directly by the customer, of finished goods
shipped to customers that we expect to be retutretker our general right of return policy, aftes thalance sheet date. Because all cores are @dssif
separately as long term assets, the inventory ummed balance includes only the added unit valueefofished good. The return rate is calculatecd
on expected returns within the normal operatindecg€ one year. As such, the related amounts assiled in current assets.
Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mans@ua finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:

* Used Cores purchased from core brokers and hetdémtory at our facilities

» Used Cores returned by our customers and heldreniory at our facilities

» Used Cores returned by end-users to customernrsobyet returned to us are classified as RemanuiedtiCores until they are physically
received by us

* Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabour facilities; ant
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* Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of the finished goods sold to the custofier these Remanufactured Cores, we
expect the finished good containing the RemanufadtCore to be returned under our general righ¢tfrn policy or a similar Used Core to
returned to us by the customer, in each case réalitc

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averagmtital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost and
market value of Used Cores for which sufficientergtcpurchases have occurred are deemed the sahee@gchase price for purchases that are made
in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average histbpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more recent
automobile models or products for which there lisss liquid market. We must purchase these UsedsJoom core brokers because our customers do
not have a sufficient supply of these newer Usext€available for the core exchange program.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainezbre broker transactions and are valued basexverage purchase price. The average
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent avtdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@xds in subsequent periods even as the sou
these Used Cores shifts to our core exchange progra

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowiezast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, we use core broker pricettists
assess whether Used Core cost exceeds Used Cdeet walue on an item by item basis. The primargoedor the insufficient recent purchases is
we obtain most of our Used Core inventory fromdhstomer core exchange program.

We classify all of our core inventories as longrieassets. The determination of the long-term diaasion is based on our view that the value of the
cores is not consumed or realized in cash durimghotmal operating cycle, which is one year for trajghe cores recorded in inventory. According to
guidance provided under the FASB ASC, current asmet defined as “assets or resources commonliifiddras those which are reasonably expected
to be realized in cash or sold or consumed dutiegibrmal operating cycle of the busine$§e do not believe that core inventories, which Vessify

as long-term, are consumed because the crediedisguon the return of Used Cores offset the amdnmtsced when the Remanufactured Cores
included in finished goods were sold. We do notegxphe core inventories to be consumed, and tleudoanot expect to realize cash, until our
relationship with a customer ends, a possibiligt the consider remote based on existing long-terstomer agreements and historical experience.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofi8hed goods sold, our customer will not send used.Core to obtain the credit we offer under our
core exchange program. Therefore, based on ouricist estimate, we derecognize the core valu¢hiese finished goods upon sale, as we believe
they have been consumed and we have realized cash.

We realize cash for only the core exchange progtamntfall of approximately 4.5%. This shortfall repents the historical difference between the
number of finished goods shipped to customers la@atimber of Used Cores returned to us by customéslo not realize cash for the remaining
portion of the cores because the credits issued tiporeturn of Used Cores offset the amounts gedivhen the Remanufactured Cores included in
finished goods were sold. We do not expect tozealash for the remaining portion of these coréi our relationship with a customer ends, a
possibility that we consider remote based on exgdibng-term customer agreements and historicatrespce.

For these reasons, we concluded that it is moreogpipte to classify core inventory as long-terraeds.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmessthe value of Remanufactured Cores we havéaased from customers, which are held by the
customers and remain on the customers’ premisespiitchase is made through the issuance of craghisist that customer’s receivables either on a
one time basis or over an agreed-upon period. Tégits against the customer’s receivable are baged the Remanufactured Core purchase price
previously established with the customer. At thmesdime, we record the long-term core inventoryasétpfor the Remanufactured Cores purchased at
its cost, determined as noted under Long-term Gurentory. The long-term core inventory depositisted at the lower of cost or market. The cost is
established at the time of the transaction basetiethen current cost, determined as noted unaegiterm Core Inventory. The difference between
the credit granted and the cost of the long-terne aoventory deposit is treated as a sales allowaeducing revenue. When the purchases are made
over an agreed-upon period, the long-term coreritorg deposit is recorded at the same time theitdedsued to the customer for the purchase ®f th
Remanufactured Cores.
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At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reitiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured Cores
purchased, but retained at the customer locatiensains sufficient to support the amounts recoidéte longterm core inventory deposit account.
the same time, the mix of Remanufactured Coresvigwed to determine that the aggregate value ofdRefactured Cores in the account has not
changed during the reporting period. We evaluatectist of Remanufactured Cores supporting the ggtgdong-term core inventory deposit account
each quarter. If we identify any permanent reductioeither the number or the aggregate value@Rémanufactured Core inventory mix held at the
customer location, we will record a reduction ie tong-term core inventory deposit account durreg period.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue when our performance is cammed all of the following criteria have been met

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:

» Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

» The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,

»  Collectibility is reasonably assure
For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shipprognt, revenue is recognized on the date of shippn#or products shipped FOB destination,
revenues are recognized on the estimated or atatelof delivery. We include shipping and handthgrges in the gross invoice price to customers
and classify the total amount as revenue. Shipaitjhandling costs are recorded in cost of sales.
Revenue Recognition; Mof-Core-Value Basis
The price of a finished product sold to customsmganerally comprised of separately invoiced an®fortthe Remanufactured Core included in the
product (“Remanufactured Core value”) and for takig added by remanufacturing (“unit value”). Tiné walue is recorded as revenue based on our
then current price list, net of applicable disceusmd allowances. Based on our experience, conalaatrangements with customers and inventory
management practices, approximately 96% of the mefaatured alternators and starters we sell tooousts are replaced by similar Used Cores sent
back for credit by customers under our core exchamggram. In accordance with our net-of-core-vatwenue recognition policy, we do not
recognize the Remanufactured Core value as rewehae the finished products are sold. We generaiit the number of Used Cores sent back ui
the core exchange program to the number of siRiélananufactured Cores previously shipped to eadiomes.
Revenue Recognition and Defer— Core Revenue
Full price Remanufactured Coré¥hen we ship a product, we invoice certain custenf@rthe Remanufactured Core value portion ofptteeluct at
full Remanufactured Core sales price but do natgaize revenue for the Remanufactured Core valtieaatime. For these Remanufactured Cores

recognize core revenue based upon an estimate ot at which our customers will pay cash for Renfiactured Cores in lieu of sending back
similar Used Cores for credits under our core ergbgprogram.
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Nominal price Remanufactured CorWe invoice other customers for the Remanufactured @alue portion of product shipped at a nominal
Remanufactured Core price. Unlike the full pricexRaufactured Cores, we only recognize revenue frominal Remanufactured Cores not expected
to be replaced by a similar Used Core sent backuthe core exchange program when we believe thdtave met all of the following criteria:

* We have a signed agreement with the customer icgyvtre nominally priced Remanufactured Cores Rpeeted to be sent back under the
core exchange program, and the agreement musfysieeinumber of Remanufactured Cores our custamiepay cash for in lieu of sending
back a similar Used Core under our core exchanggr@m and the basis on which the nominally pricechBnufactured Cores are to be valued
(normally the average price per Remanufactured €tipalated in the agreemer

» The contractual date for reconciling our recondd eustomer’s records of the number of nominallggat Remanufactured Cores not expected
to be replaced by similar Used Cores sent backrumatecore exchange program must be in the cuoeatprior period

» The reconciliation must be completed and agredyy tive custome!
e The amount must be billed to the custon

Deferral of Core RevenueAs noted previously, we have in the past and malye future agree to buy back Remanufactured Civoen certain
customers. The difference between the credit gdaaubel the cost of the Remanufactured Cores bowggtit i treated as a sales allowance reducing
revenue. As a result of the ongoing Remanufact@a@ buybacks, we have now deferred core revenme thhese customers until there is no
expectation that sales allowances associated veithaRufactured Core buybacks from these customdreffgiet core revenues that would otherwise
be recognized once the criteria noted above hase bet. At March 31, 2011 and 2010, RemanufactGeze revenue of $8,729,000 and $6,061,000,
respectively, was deferred.

Revenue Recognition; General Right of Re

We allow our customers to return goods to us theit end-user customers have returned to them hgh#te returned item is or is not defective
(warranty returns). In addition, under the termsatain agreements with our customers and indys&gtice, our customers from time to time are
allowed stock adjustments when their inventoryertain product lines exceeds the anticipated salead-user customers (stock adjustment returns).
We seek to limit the aggregate of customer retuntdiding warranty and stock adjustment returadess than 20% of unit sales. In some instances,
we allow a higher level of returns in connectionthna significant update order.

We provide for such anticipated returns of inventay reducing revenue and the related cost of dafetbie units estimated to be returned.

Our allowance for warranty returns is establishaskll on a historical analysis of the level of thi of return as a percentage of total unit s&esck
adjustment returns do not occur at any specifie titaring the year, and the expected level of thetsens cannot be reasonably estimated based on a
historical analysis. Our allowance for stock adjusit returns is based on specific customer invgréwels, inventory movements and information on
the estimated timing of stock adjustment returrwigled by our customers.

Sales I ncentives
We provide various marketing allowances to ouraw&rs, including sales incentives and concessiasgketing allowances related to a single
exchange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues aredett@r when such incentives are offered. Other

marketing allowances, which may only be appliedragduture purchases, are recorded as a redutticevenues in accordance with a schedule set
forth in the relevant contract. Sales incentive ants are recorded based on the value of the in@eptbvided.
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Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price dveifair value of identifiable net assets acquiretusiness combinations. We do not amortize
goodwill but we evaluate goodwill for impairment an annual basis or more frequently if events muchstances occur that would indicate a
reduction in fair value of the Company. Such inthcsiinclude, but are not limited to, events oceimstances such as a significant adverse change in
the business climate, unanticipated competitidoss of key personnel, adverse legal or regulademselopments, or a significant decline in the marke
price of our common stock. We did not have any gob@t March 31, 2011 or 2010.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liability Inegt, which measures deferred income taxes by agpBmacted statutory rates in effect at the
balance sheet date to the differences betweemthegasis of assets and liabilities and their regsbaimounts in the financial statements. The regulti
asset or liability is adjusted to reflect changethie tax laws as they occur. A valuation allowaisgerovided to reduce deferred tax assets whien it
more likely than not that a portion of the defertaxl asset will not be realized.

The primary components of our income tax provigimenefit) are (i) the current liability or refundel for federal, state and foreign income taxes and
(i) the change in the amount of the net deferrexine tax asset, including the effect of any changkee valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent opoability to generate sufficient future taxalleome. In evaluating this ability, management
considers long-term agreements and Remanufactwesllirchase obligations with our major customleas éxpire at various dates through March
2019. Based on our forecast of our future operatisglts, we believe that it is more likely than tiwt future taxable income will be sufficient to
realize the recorded deferred tax assets. We peaibdcompare our forecasts to actual results,thrde can be no assurance that the forecasteltsresu
will be achieved.

Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk from material movemenforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dalid the currencies of the foreign countries in
which we operate. As a result of our significangigtions in Mexico, our primary risk relates toieges in the rates between the U.S. dollar and the
Mexican peso. To mitigate this currency risk, wéeeimto forward foreign exchange contracts to exaje U.S. dollars for Mexican pesos. The extent
to which we use forward foreign exchange contracperiodically reviewed in light of our estimateroarket conditions and the terms and length of
anticipated requirements. During fiscal 2011, wsoantered into forward foreign currency exchargeracts to exchange U.S. dollars for Chinese
yuan to mitigate the risk of exposure from matemalvements in exchange rates on purchases we makeChinese vendors. The use of derivative
financial instruments allows us to reduce our exp®$o the risk that the eventual net cash outflesulting from funding the expenses of the foreign
operations will be materially affected by changethie exchange rates. We do not engage in curigregulation or hold or issue financial instruments
for trading purposes. We had foreign exchange aotgmwith an aggregate U.S. dollar equivalent mafiealue (and materially the same nominal fair
value) of $9,356,000 and $6,159,000 at March 3112fhd 2010, respectively. These contracts gegexgiire in a year or less. Any changes in the
fair value of foreign exchange contracts are actalifor as an increase or decrease to generaldanihigtrative expenses in current period earnings.
During fiscal 2011 and 2010, a loss of $162,000agdin of $1,565,000, respectively, were recoidegkneral and administrative expenses due to the
change in the value of the forward foreign curreexghange contracts subsequent to entering intodhgacts.
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Share-based Payments

In accounting for share-based compensation awas fllow the accounting guidance for equity-basethpensation, which requires that we measure
the cost of employee services received in exchéorgen award of equity instuments based on thetgtate fair value of the award. The cost
associated with stock options is estimated usiedlack-Scholes option-pricing model. The costaiigy instruments is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income on a straightBims (net of estimated forefeitures) over théopeduring which an employee is required to provide
service in exchange for the award. Also, excesbémefits realized are reported as a financing rdkiw.

Fair Value Measurements

We adopted the guidance on fair value measurenaenitslisclosures for all financial assets and ligddd on April 1, 2008. This guidance defined fair
value as the price that would be received to selisset or paid to transfer a liability in an olgléransaction between market participants at the
measurement date. It also established a framewonkéasuring fair value in accordance with GAAP arganded the disclosures required for fair
value measurements. On April 1, 2009, we adoptechéw fair value accounting principles for all namancial assets and non-financial liabilities,
except for items that are recognized or disclosédiavalue in the financial statements on a reéogrbasis, which did not have any material impact
our financial condition, results of operations asla flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@&¢the “FASB”) issued new guidance on the treatnoé transfers of financial assets which
eliminates the concept of a “qualifying specialymse entity,” changes the requirements for derdeogpfinancial assets, and requires additional
disclosures in order to enhance information regbieusers of financial statements by providingatgetransparency about transfers of financialtas
including securitization transactions, and an gistitontinuing involvement in and exposure to tis&s related to transferred financial assets. mhis
guidance was effective as of the beginning of diyesfirst fiscal year that began after Novemié;, 2009. The adoption of this guidance on April 1,
2010 did not have any impact on our consolidatedrftial position and results of operations.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whigtnaisithe consolidation guidance applicable to bbeimterest entities and was effective as o
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that laegafter November 15, 2009. The adoption of thidajuce on April 1, 2010 did not have any impact on
our consolidated financial position and resultspérations.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu

In January 2010, the FASB issued an update whighines new disclosures for transfers in and outesfel 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
and expanded disclosures for activity in Level 3haffair value hierarchy. The update also clagié&isting disclosures regarding the level of
disaggregation for disclosure and disclosures ainpuits and valuation techniques. The new discksand clarifications of existing disclosures were
effective for interim and annual reporting peridginning after December 15, 2009. The adoptiahisfupdate on January 1, 2010 did not have any
impact on our consolidated financial position aesults of operations. The disclosures regardingiteLevel 3 activity are effective for fiscal ysar
beginning after December 15, 2010. We do not extmecadoption of this guidance on April 1, 201h&ve any material impact on our consolidated
financial position and results of operations.
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Disclosure Requirements Related to Financing Rabéds

In July 2010, the FASB issued an update which regwenhanced disclosures about the credit qudlfipancing receivables and the related allowance
for credit losses. Trade accounts receivable wilunities of one year or less are excluded frondikelosure requirements. Disclosures required as o
the end of a reporting period were effective faeiim and annual periods ending on or after Decerhbe2010. The adoption of this guidance on
December 31, 2010 did not have any impact on oosadalated financial position and results of operat. The disclosures required about activity that
occurs during a reporting period are effectiveifderim and annual periods beginning on or aftecdeber 15, 2010. The adoption of this guidance on
January 1, 2011 did not have any impact on ouralafeted financial position and the results of @iens.

When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill ImpairmesdtTor Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Camgy Amounts

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidance whictlifiles step 1 of the goodwill impairment test feporting units with zero or negative carrying
amounts. For those reporting units with a carndangpunt equal to or less than zero for which qualgdactors indicate that it is more likely thaotn
that a goodwill impairment exists, step 2 of thedwill impairment test will need to be performedig guidance is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning aBecember 15, 2010. Early adoption of this updagrohibited. We do not expect the adoption of
guidance on April 1, 2011 to have any material iotman our consolidated financial position and thsutts of operations.

Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformationBusiness Combinatiot

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidance whiekifips that if comparative financial statements aresented, disclosure of revenue and earnings
of a combined entity should be made as though tisenbss combination(s) that occurred during theetiilyear had occurred as of the beginning o
comparable prior annual reporting period only. Tdiglance is effective for business combinatiomssammated in fiscal years beginning on or after
December 15, 2010. We are currently evaluatingrtipact the adoption of this guidance on April 112@vill have on our consolidated financial
position and the results of operations.

Subsequent Event

During fiscal 2011, we made secured loans in thpe@pmate aggregate amount of $4,863,000 to Fempoivately-owned Toronto-based
manufacturer, remanufacturer and distributor of aen remanufactured aftermarket auto parts. Inection with these loans, we had an option to
acquire a substantial ownership interest in Fe@toMay 6, 2011, we entered into and consummatettahsactions pursuant to a purchase agreemen
(the “Purchase Agreement”) with FAPL Holdings Iff&zAPL") and certain individuals. In connection Withis acquisition, we advanced an additional
$10,000,000 to Fenco. Pursuant to the PurchasesAgnet, we purchased (i) all of the outstanding tgepfiFenco, a corporation incorporated under
the laws of Ontario, (ii) all of the outstandinguéy of Introcan, Inc. (“Introcan”), a Delaware paration, and (iii) 1% of the outstanding equity of
Fapco S.A. de C.V. (“Fapco”), a Mexican variablpital company. Since Fenco owned 99% of Fapco,eve awn 100% of Fapco.

In consideration for the acquisition, we issue&#£dL 360,000 shares of our common stock (the “MPar8s”). For a period of 18 months following
the closing of the acquisition, the MPA Sharesldteaki) subject to transfer restrictions pursuara Hold Agreement between us and FAPL, dated
May 6, 2011 (the “Hold Agreement”), and (ii) helda@scrow in order to secure certain indemnificatibligations under the Purchase Agreement
pursuant to an Escrow Agreement by and among FSBkeman Elliott LLP, certain individuals, and dsted May 6, 2011 (the “Escrow
Agreement”).

In connection with the acquisition and the secloaths made to Fenco, we have incurred expense®/8f@00 related to legal, accounting, and

valuation services during fiscal 2011, which arfterted in operating expenses. Additional feesanmection with the closing of the transaction il
recorded as expenses in the first quarter of fid8&R as incurred.
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In connection with the acquisition, our now whotlyned subsidiaries, Fenco and Introcan, as boro{tiee “Fenco Borrowers”), entered into an
amended and restated credit agreement, dated M2} &, (the “Fenco Credit Agreement”) with Manufaens and Traders Trust Company as lead
arranger, M&T Bank as lender and administrativendgad other lenders from time to time party theghe “Lenders”). Pursuant to the Fenco Credit
Agreement, the Lenders have made available to¢hed-Borrowers a revolving credit facility in the@rimum principal amount of $50,000,000 (the
“Revolving Facility”) and a term loan in the pripal amount of $10,000,000 (the “Term Loan”). Thaibility of the Revolving Facility is subject to
a borrowing base calculation consisting of eligiséeounts receivable and eligible inventory.

The Fenco Borrowers may receive advances unddRelielving Facility by any one or more of the folliog options: (i) swingline advances in
Canadian or US dollars; (ii) Canadian dollar prib@esed loans; (iii) US dollar base rate loans; (iBOR loans; or (v) letters of credit.

The Term Loan bears interest at the LIBO rate plugpplicable margin. Outstanding advances un@eRévolving Facility bear interest as follows:
@) in respect of swingline advances in Canadiallars and Canadian dollar prime-based loartheateference rate announced by the
Royal Bank of Canada plus an applicable mar
(i) in respect of swingline advances in US dollars ld&ddollar base rate loans, at a base rate (whigh [t equal to the highest of (
M&T Bank’s prime rate, (y) the Federal Funds Rate plus ¥Wafor (z) the one month LIBO rate) plus an applieanargin;
(iii)  in respect of LIBOR loans, at the LIBO rate plusagplicable margir
The Fenco Credit Agreement, among other thingsjireg the Fenco Borrowers to maintain certain fai@ncovenants.

The Revolving Facility and the Term Loan matureGmiober 6, 2012, but may be accelerated upon ther@nce of an insolvency event or event of
default under the Fenco Credit Agreement.

In connection with the Fenco Credit Agreement, @gnkd Fenco an additional $10,000,000 bringingagggegate amount of indebtedness owed by
Fenco to us to $14,863,000.

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes certain key operatiata for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2011 2010 2009
Gross profit 31.9% 28.1% 29.2%
Cash flow provided by (used in) operatic $ 10,735,000 $ 18,347,000 $ (11,078,00)
Finished goods inventory turnover | 5.2 5.C 4.4
Return on equity (2 11.€% 10.4% 4.2%

(1) Finished goods inventory turnover is calcudaty dividing the cost of goods sold for the yewtle average between beginning and ending non-
core finished goods inventory values, for eacheligear. We believe that this provides a usefulsueaof our ability to turn production into
revenues

(2) Return on equity is computed as net incometiferfiscal year divided by shareholders’ equitthatbeginning of the fiscal year and measures our
ability to invest shareholde funds profitably.
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Following is our results of operation, reflectedagsercentage of net sales:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2011 2010 2009

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of goods sold 68.1 71.€ 70.7
Gross profit 31.¢€ 28.1 29.5
Operating expense

General and administratiy 10.€ 10.5 14.4
Sales and marketir 4.1 4.1 3.8
Research and developmt 1.C 1.C iz
Acquisition costs 0.t 0.1 -
Impairment of goodwill - - 1.€
Operating incomu 15.7 12.4 7.8
Gain on acquisitiol - (0.9 -
Interest expens— net of interest incom 3.3 3.2 3.1
Income tax expense 4.8 3.€ 1.¢
Net income 7.€ 6.5 2.8

Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010

Net Sale:. Net sales during fiscal 2011 increased by $14@®Y) or 9.6%, to $161,285,000 compared to nesshleng fiscal 2010 of $147,225,000.
The increase in our net sales was primarily duadeeased sales to our existing and several netemgss we acquired during fiscal 2011. In addition,
our fiscal 2011 net sales reflect the full year amipof net sales to customers we acquired as # cfsaur August 2009 acquistion. Also, we recorded
revenue, net of cost, of $378,000 in connectiom witr Consignment Agreement.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Proftost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesadsl during fiscal 2011 to 68.1% from 71.9%sgdl 2010,
resulting in a corresponding increase in our gpefit percentage of 3.8% to 31.9% during fiscal 2lrom 28.1% during fiscal 2010. The increase in
the gross profit percentage was primarily due veeloper unit manufacturing costs during fiscal 2@$Xcompared to fiscal 2010.

General and Administrativéur general and administrative expenses durin@lfid@11 were $17,033,000, which represents anaseref $1,644,000,
or 10.7%, from general and administrative expedsesg fiscal 2010 of $15,389,000. This increasgeneral and administrative expenses was
primarily due to the following: (i) a loss of $16B0 recorded due to the changes in the fair valfiereign exchange contracts compared to a gain of
$1,565,000 during fiscal 2010, (ii) $259,000 ofremsed general and administrative expenses affishoce manufacturing facilities due primarily to
increased professional services fees and otheuttomsfees, (iii) $217,000 of decreased amorimabf the gain on the saleaseback transaction, ¢
(iv) $152,000 of increased expenses which primaelgted to travel in connection with our Fencouasition. These increases were partly offset by a
decrease in bad debt expense as we recorded aiprofar bad debt expense of $898,000 in the year compared to a recovery of $38,000 in the
current year.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses during fischl 2fcreased $518,000, or 8.6%, to $6,537,000 $6r819,000 during fiscal
2010. This increase was due primarily to (i) insezhtravel expense, (ii) the full year impact @& tompensation for the employees as a result of our
August 2009 acquisition, (iii) increased trade shoyense, and (iv) increased advertising expensegifiscal 2011. These increases in sales and
marketing expenses were partially offset by deeeasitalog expenses during fiscal 2011.
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Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses increasgtPBy000, or 9.0%, to $1,549,000 during fiscal 2B&in $1,421,00(
during fiscal 2010. The increase in research areldpment expenses was due primarily to increasgalayee-related expenses and fees for
consulting services during fiscal 2011.

Acquisition cost. Our acquisition costs were $879,000 during fi&tHl1 compared to $191,000 during fiscal 2010. {@cal 2011 acquisition costs
were incurred in connection with our secured ldarthe approximate aggregate amount of $4,863,00@&hco and the acquisition of Fenco on Ma
2011.

Gain on acquisition During fiscal 2010, we recorded a gain of $1,880,in connection with the acquisition of certassets of Reliance as the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquiredeslexd the fair value of the consideration transéerr

Interest ExpenstOur interest expense, net of interest income oDFWD, during fiscal 2011 was $5,355,000. Thisesents an increase of $645,000
over interest expense of $4,710,000 during fis64al02 This increase was primarily attributable tigher balance of receivables being discounted
under the receivable discount programs during i2841 compared to fiscal 2010. This increase irimterest expense was partly offset by a decrease
in interest expense incurred on the lower averaggtanding balances on our revolving loan and ahlgiase obligations during fiscal 2011.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2011, we recorded income tax expensk7¢809,000 compared to income tax expense of $3)28 in fiscal 2010, an effective
rate of 39.0% and 35.4% for fiscal 2011 and 20&8pectively. The primary reason for the increaghé effective tax rate was because the benefit of
lower statutory tax rates in foreign taxing jurigtins was not as significant in fiscal 2011 whempared to the prior year. Offsetting the incrdase
the effective rate was an increase in the inconp@iioned to states with lower tax rates, whichrdased our domestic effective rate. As a result of
the decrease in the domestic effective tax rateewalued our deferred tax assets to reflect theldwalue of deductions taken for book purposes, bu
not yet allowed for tax purposes. The changeéndiiferred tax rate resulted in a reduction ohiitedeferred tax assets of $558,000. This amoust wa
charged to income tax expense in fiscal 2011.

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009

Net Sale:. Net sales during fiscal 2010 increased by $12(BEY or 9.2%, to $147,225,000 compared to nesshleng fiscal 2009 of $134,866,000.
This increase was due to sales to new custometsradcas a result of our acquisitions and an irggeéa sales to our other existing customers. Our ne
sales during the first two months of fiscal 201Geveegatively impacted by an inventory reductioogoam initiated by one of our largest customers,
and an understanding with another customer to d#gyments because of its then uncertain finaffigiate. In addition, our net sales during fiscal
2010 were positively impacted by the recognitioi$845,000 of previously deferred core revenue. \Aketrecognized this revenue because we do not
expect to incur any additional sales incentivevedinces associated with Remanufactured Core buylearksa certain customer.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Prof@ost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesaged during fiscal 2010 to 71.9% from 70.7%s$cdl 2009,
resulting in a corresponding decrease in our goosfit percentage of 1.2% to 28.1% during fiscal@@rom 29.3% during fiscal 2009. This decrea:
our gross profit percentage was primarily dueijahg reversal of a $1,307,000 accrual relatetthéocustoms duties claims during fiscal 2009 which
enhanced margins in fiscal 2009, (ii) an increagesickaging costs of $1,090,000 reflecting incréasdes to new customers and improved and more
costly packaging materials compared to fiscal 2@, (iii) an increase in the provision for excasd obsolete inventory of $842,000 compared to
fiscal 2009. These decreases in gross profit warkglly offset by the lower per unit manufacturiogsts during fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 200
addition, our gross profit in the prior year wasitigely impacted by acceleration of $2,300,00@dmotional allowances earned during the fourth
guarter of fiscal 2008, which otherwise would haeen earned by one of our customers during thehfaurarter of fiscal 2008 through the first four
months of fiscal 2009.

General and Administrativéur general and administrative expenses durin@lfd@10 were $15,389,000, which represents a deemfab4,090,000,

or 21.0%, from general and administrative expedseimg fiscal 2009 of $19,479,000. This decreasgeimeral and administrative expenses was
primarily due to the following: (i) a gain of $1,5800 recorded due to the changes in the fair vaflfiereign exchange contracts compared to a lbss o
$1,194,000 during fiscal 2009, (ii) $1,323,000 etkased professional services fees, and (iii) B80D2of decreased stock-based compensation. Thes
decreases in general and administrative expensespaetially offset by $673,000 of increased primrisor bad debt expense during fiscal 2010.
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Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses during fiscED 2@creased $777,000, or 14.8%, to $6,019,000 $6r842,000 during fiscal
2009. This increase was due primarily to the additf employees as a result of our acquisitiond,inareased commission expenses due to higher ne
sales. These increases in sales and marketing seperere partially offset by decreased professieeralices and consulting fees, and travel expenses
during fiscal 2010.

Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses decrea$&d BY00, or 28.7%, to $1,421,000 during fiscal®@Bdm
$1,993,000 during fiscal 2009. The decrease inarebeand development expenses was due primariber compensation expenses resulting from a
reduction in workforce and consulting fees.

Impairment of Goodwil. During fiscal 2009, we recorded a non-cash pxertgpairment charge of $2,191,000. After recordimg impairment charge,
we had no goodwill remaining on our consolidatelhhee sheet as of March 31, 2009.

Gain on acquisition During fiscal 2010, we recorded a gain of $1,880,in connection with the acquisition of certaiisets of Reliance as the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquiredesied the fair value of the consideration transterr

Interest Expens«Our interest expense, net of interest income, duigtal 2010 was $4,710,000. This represents ene@se of $514,000 over interest
expense, net of interest income, of $4,196,000hduiscal 2009. This increase was primarily atttéle to a higher balance of receivables being
discounted under the receivable discount prograumisgi fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Duriregél 2010, interest expense incurred on the
higher average outstanding balances on our revpleian was offset by lower interest rates.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2010, we recorded income tax expenskbg#82,000 compared to income tax expense of $0868 in fiscal 2009. This increase
was primarily due to higher ptex income partly offset by the benefit of loweatstory tax rates in foreign taxing jurisdictiomsfiscal 2010 compare
to the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At March 31, 2011, we had working capital of $1,38®, a ratio of current assets to current ligbgiof 1:1, and cash of $2,477,000, compared to
working capital of $3,399,000, a ratio of curressets to current liabilities of 1.1:1, and casBb210,000 at March 31, 2010. The decrease in wg
capital from March 31, 2010 primarily resulted fréine increase in accounts payable balances duepior¢hases of inventory from Fensoiendors i
connection with our Consignment Agreement, (ii) continued effort to make purchases from vendotk lenger payment terms, and (iii) the timing
of payments made at fiscal year-end. These dea@aseorking capital were partly offset by an irese in accounts receivable due to (i) a reduction i
the future credits to be provided for Used Corésrreed by our customers and (ii) increased nessdleing fiscal 2011. In addition, our accounts
receivable at March 31, 2011, include $4,160,008cabunts receivable from Fenco pursuant to thesigoment Agreement.

During fiscal 2011, we used cash generated by tpes from our use of receivable discount progravits certain of our major customers, and our
revolving loan as our primary sources of liquidithese sources were primarily used to make sedoaed in the approximate aggregate amount of
$4,863,000 to Fenco, to make the quarterly pringipgment on the term loan, pay for capital expemdiobligations, and pay the purchase price
holdback in connection with our May 2008 acquisitio
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We believe our cash generated by operations, amawailable under our credit agreement, and our aad short term investments on hand are
sufficient to satisfy our expected future workirgpital needs, capital lease commitments, repayofehe current portion of our term loan, and cdpita
expenditure obligations over the next twelve moifithur current operations. However, due to ouuésition of Fenco, we may require additional
capital and we cannot predict or assure that awiditifunds from existing sources will be sufficient

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities was $39,000 and $18,347,000 during fiscal 2011 and 2fEspectively. The most significant change
operating activities during fiscal 2011 comparedigoal 2010 were due primarily to increases in atrounts receivable and long-term core inventory
levels. Our accounts receivable, net increasechddiscal 2011 due to (i) a reduction in the futaredits to be provided for Used Cores returney, (i
account receivables recorded in connection withtbesignment Agreement, and (iii) the reductiothie prior year accounts receivable due to the
reinstatement of a receivable discount program with of our major customers in September 2009.l@g-term core inventory levels increased due
primarily to an increase in Used Cores held atfacitities and Remanufactured Cores held at custshiecations due to higher sales. These changes
in operating activities were partly offset by a @exse in our non-core inventory levels during i€s 1 compared to an increase in our non-core
inventory levels during fiscal 2010.

Net cash used in investing activities was $6,723#&@d $3,666,000 during fiscal 2011 and 2010, &smdy. The increase in net cash use:

investing activities was primarily a result of thecured loans in the approximate aggregate amé®ddt,863,000 made to Fenco during fiscal 2011.
This increase in net cash used in investing a@wivas partly offset by the payment of the puret@gce holdback of $464,000 in connection with our
May 2008 acquisition compared to the payment 0822,000 during fiscal 2010 for our acquisitionspifa expenditures for fiscal 2011 primarily
related to the purchase of equipment for our mantufang facilities and improvements to our Califrfiacility compared to purchases in the same
period of the prior year primarily related to puasks of equipment for our manufacturing facilities.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2,79080d $13,947,000 during fiscal 2011 and 2010,eesgely. This change was primarily due
repayments of our previous revolving loan, in frthe use of the proceeds from our term loanndufiscal 2010. Additionally, during fiscal 2011,
we repurchased 14,400 shares at a total cost gd@8Pursuant to a share repurchase program azelddoly our Board of Directors in March 2010.

Capital Resources
Debt

In October 2009, we entered into a revolving cradi term loan agreement (the “Credit Agreementth wur bank and one additional lender (the
“Lenders”), which permits us to borrow up to a tat$45,000,000 (the “Credit Facility”). The Credhacility is comprised of (i) a revolving facility
with a $7,000,000 letter of credit sub-facility afiijl a term loan. We may borrow on a revolvingisag to an amount equal to $35,000,000 minus all
outstanding letter of credit obligations minus arbwing reserve of $7,500,000 (the “Revolving LoaMhe borrowing reserve remains in effect on
we are party to a receivable discount program @unsto which our accounts receivable owed to usunjargest customer are being discounted. The
term loan is in the principal amount of $10,000,0@ “Term Loan”). The Lenders hold a securityenest in substantially all of our assets.

The Credit Agreement, among other things, requiget maintain certain financial covenants, inatgdiangible net worth, fixed charge coverage r
and leverage ratio covenants. We were in compliaitteall financial covenants under the Credit Agmeent as of March 31, 2011.

The Term Loan matures in October 2014 and requpiiiesipal payments of $500,000 on a quarterly b&die Revolving Loan expires in October
2011 and provides us the option to request upreethne-year extensions.

30




Table of Content

In May 2010, we entered into a first amendmenh&oGredit Agreement with our Lenders. This amendmpevides, among other things, that the
borrowing reserve against our Revolving Loan comreitt amount be increased from $7,500,000 to $100000

In November 2010, we entered into a second amendiméime Credit Agreement with our Lenders. Thissadment, among other things, (i) extended
the expiration date of the Revolving Loan to Octod@l2 and (ii) lowered the applicable margins anlworrowings to the levels described below.

In December 2010, we entered into a third amendmeethte Credit Agreement with our Lenders. This adment, among other things, eliminated the
minimum London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) ding rate with respect to the Term Loan.

In April 2011, we entered into a fourth amendmerthie Credit Agreement, effective March 31, 201ithwur Lenders. This amendment, among other
things, (i) increased the amount we may borrow egvalving basis from $35,000,000 to $50,000,008 @) amended the definition of permitted
acquisitions under the Credit Agreement.

There was no outstanding balance on the Revolvaaplat March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Aalthilly, we had reserved $1,126,000 of the
Revolving Loan for standby letters of credit forners’ compensation insurance and $3,536,000 fomeercial letters of credit as of March 31, 2011.
As of March 31, 2011, $45,338,000 was availablecutide Revolving Loan, and of this, $10,000,000 veserved for use in the event our largest
customer discontinued its current practice of hgnduor receivables discounted.

The Revolving Loan and the Term Loan bear intesiesither our bank’s reference rate plus an apglécaargin or a LIBOR rate plus an applicable
margin, as selected by us in accordance with teeiCAgreement. The reference rate is, as furtescidbed in the Credit Agreement, the higher of our
bank’s announced base rate and the Federal futelpltes 1/2 percent. The applicable margins arerdeted quarterly on a prospective basis as set
forth below:

Leverage Ratio Applicable LIBOR Margin Applicable Reference Rate Margin
Less than 1.0:1. 250 basis point 125 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.0:1.0, but less* 275 basis point
1.5:1.0 150 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.5:: 300 basis point 175 basis point

Our ability to comply in future periods with theaéincial covenants in the Credit Agreement, willefggon our ongoing financial and operating
performance, which, in turn, will be subject to romic conditions and to financial, business an@wothctors, many of which are beyond our control
and will be substantially dependent on the seltiiges and demand for our products, customer desnffamanarketing allowances and other
concessions, raw material costs, and our abiligucessfully implement our overall business sisgtancluding acquisitions. If a violation of an§ o
the covenants occurs in the future, we would attampbtain a waiver or an amendment from our Lesiddo assurance can be given that we would
be successful in this regard.

Receivable Discount Prograr

Our liquidity has been positively impacted by reedile discount programs we have established witfaicecustomers and their respective banks.
Under these programs, we have the option to sedletlcustomers’ receivables to those banks at audisto be agreed upon at the time the receivables
are sold. The weighted average discount undeptoigram was 3.9% during fiscal 2011 and has allousetb accelerate collection of receivables
aggregating $134,867,000 by a weighted averag8@tays. While these arrangements have reducedarking capital needs, there can be no
assurance that these programs will continue irfithee. These programs resulted in interest expeh$d,768,000 during fiscal 2011. Interest expense
resulting from these programs would increase #nest rates rise, if utilization of these discongtarrangements expands or if the discount pesiod i
extended to reflect more favorable payment ternmigtomers.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2011, we had no off-balance sheetnfiireg or other arrangements with unconsolidatediesior financial partnerships (such as entities
often referred to as structured finance or speuigbose entities) established for purposes ofifatilg off-balance sheet financing or other debt
arrangements or for other contractually narrowiraitéd purposes.

Multi-year Customer Agreements

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeitftsmany of our major customers. Under these agee¢snwhich typically have initial terms of at
least four years, we are designated as the exelasiprimary supplier for specified categorieseshanufactured alternators and starters. In
consideration for our designation as a customestusive or primary supplier, we typically provitie customer with a package of marketing
incentives. These incentives differ from contractontract and can include (i) the issuance ofegifipd amount of credits against receivables in
accordance with a schedule set forth in the relesamtract, (i) support for a particular custonseresearch or marketing efforts provided on a
scheduled basis, (iii) discounts granted in conapavith each individual shipment of product, ang pther marketing, research, store expansion or
product development support. These contracts tipigequire that we meet ongoing standards rel&addlfillment, price, and quality. Our contracts
with major customers expire at various dates thinddgrch 2019.

The longer-term agreements both reflect and sthemgbur customer relationships and business baseever, they also result in a continuing
concentration of our revenue sources among a fgvelstomers and require a significant increasauiruge of working capital to build inventory and
increase production. This increased productionemsggnificant increases in our inventories, actopayable and employee base, and customer
demands that we purchase their Remanufacturedi@getory can be a significant strain on our a\ddacapital. In addition, the marketing and other
allowances that we typically grant to our customersonnection with these new or expanded relalijpssadversely impact the nearm revenues ar
associated cash flows from these arrangements. Hoywee believe this incremental business will ioya our overall liquidity and cash flow from
operations over time.

Consignment Agreement

In March 2011, in order to maintain the serviceslevior Fenco’s customers, we entered into a consémt agreement (the “Consignment Agreemjent”
with Rafko Logistics Inc. (the “Consignee”), a sidisry of FAPL. Pursuant to this agreement, we inletd an assignment of certain of the Consignee’s
purchase orders with Consignee’s vendors and coeditp Consignee the goods purchased by us pursusich assigned purchase orders. All
liabilities arising from this agreement have beaargnteed by FAPL.

During fiscal 2011, we recorded revenue, net ofs;ad $378,000 from this agreement. At March 3112 under this agreement, $4,160,000 was
included in accounts receivable — net in the acamgimg consolidated balance sheets representingpthenf the consigned goods. Additonally,
$1,249,000 of finished goods inventory remaine@a@tsignee’s location in connection with this agreatrat March 31, 2011. Also, included in
accounts payable at March 31, 2011, is approxim&#|312,000 payable to Consignee’s vendors fagntory purchased under this agreement.

As a result of the acquisition of Fenco in May 20the Consignment Agreement became an intercomagrgement.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, the Company’s Board of Directorshauzed a share repurchase program of up to $3)00&f the Company’s outstanding common
stock from time to time in the open market andringte transactions at prices deemed appropriatedyagement. There is no expiration date

governing the period over which the Company canmgpase shares under this program. During July 20@0Company repurchased 14,400 shares at
a total cost of approximately $89,000.
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Capital Expenditures and Commitments

Our capital expenditures were $1,566,000 duringafi2011. A significant portion of these expenditurelate to the purchase of equipment for our
manufacturing facilities and improvements to oulifGmia facility. We expect our fiscal 2012 capitxpenditure for our current operations to be
approximately $2,400,000. We expect to use our imgrkapital and incur additional capital lease gdions to finance these capital expenditures.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligai@md other commitments as of March 31, 2011, eeffect such obligations could have on our
cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than 1 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total year 2 to 3 years 4t0 5 years years
Capital Lease Obligations ( $ 875,00 $ 398,00 $ 477,000 $ - % =
Operating Lease Obligations ( 9,320,00! 2,788,00! 3,374,00! 2,657,00! 501,00¢(
Term Loan 7,500,001 2,000,00! 4,000,00! 1,500,001 -
Unrecognized Tax Benefits ( - - - - -
Other Long-Term Obligations (4) 33,373,00 11,799,00 8,857,00! 6,257,00! 6,460,00!
Total $ 51,068,000 $ 16,98500 $ 16,708,00 $ 10,414,00 $ 6,961,00i

(1) Capital Lease Obligations represent amounts duerwapital leases for various types of machined/@mputer equipmer

(2) Operating Lease Obligations represent amadursfor rent under our leases for office and wawnskdacilities in California, Tennessee,
Connecticut, Malaysia, Singapore and Mexico, amefo Company automobil:

(3) We are unable to reliably estimate the timofifuture payments related to uncertain tax posgjaherefore, $530,000 of income taxes payable has
been excluded from the table above. However, futaxgayment accruals related to uncertain taxtijposi are included in our balance sheets,
reduced by the associated federal deduction fte taes

(4) Other Long-Term Obligations represent committeave have with certain customers to provide mtargeallowances in consideration for long-
term agreements to provide products over a defieeidd. We are not obligated to provide these ntar§geallowances should our business
relationships end with these custom

Ilte m 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in ggerates and foreign currency exchange rates. &gk is the potential loss arising from adverse
changes in market prices and rates, includingesteates and foreign currency exchange rates.d®tenter into derivatives or other financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposesodsoverseas operations expand, our exposure tastks associated with foreign currency
fluctuations will continue to increase.

Our primary interest rate exposure relates to lasoutstanding under our Credit Facility and neadgle discount programs, which have interest costs
that vary with interest rate movements. Our CrEditility bears interest at variable base rateslequae LIBOR rate or the bank’s reference rate, a
our option, plus a margin rate dependent upon astmecently reported leverage ratio. This obligais the only variable rate facility we have
outstanding at March 31, 2011. At March 31, 2014 had no amounts outstanding under our RevolvirapLBased upon the $7,500,000 balance of
our Term Loan at March 31, 2011, an increase ir@st rates of 1%, would have increased our anmetahterest expense by $75,000. In addition, for
each $10,000,000 of accounts receivable we disanterta period of 180 days, a 1% increase in istestes would decrease our operating results by
$50,000.
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We are exposed to foreign currency exchange ris&ramt in our anticipated purchases and assetadnilities denominated in currencies other than
the U.S. dollar. We transact business in threedareurrencies which affect our operations: the &alan ringit, the Singapore dollar, and the Mex
peso. Our total foreign assets were $7,508,00@&133,000 as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, respdgtiin addition, as of March 31, 2011 and 2(
we had $2,594,000 and $369,000, respectively, @oert foreign subsidiaries. While these amountstneinated in consolidation, they impact our
foreign currency translation gains and losses.

During fiscal 2011 and 2010, we experienced imnigtgains relative to our transactions involving talaysian ringit and the Singapore dollar.
Based upon our current operations related to ttveseurrencies, a change of 10% in exchange ratesdwesult in an immaterial change in the
amount reported in our financial statements.

Our exposure to currency risks has increased sirecexpansion of our remanufacturing operatioridéxico. Since these operations will be accoul
for primarily in Mexican pesos, fluctuations in thalue of the Mexican peso are expected to haugnifisant impact on our reported results. To
mitigate the risk of currency fluctuation betwebe tJ.S. dollar and the Mexican peso, in August 200%egan to enter into forward foreign currency
exchange contracts to exchange U.S. dollars foriddexpesos. The extent to which we use forwarddareurrency exchange contracts is periodically
reviewed in light of our estimate of market cormtis and the terms and length of anticipated remérgs. The use of derivative financial instruments
allows us to reduce our exposure to the risk tiaeventual net cash outflow resulting from fundimg expenses of the foreign operations will be
materially affected by changes in exchange rateaddition, during fiscal 2011, we began to entéw forward foreign currency exchange contracts to
exchange U.S. dollars for Chinese yuan to miti¢fagerisk of exposure from material movements irhexge rates on purchases from Chinese ver
These contracts generally expire in a year or lesg.changes in the fair values of our forward fgrecurrency exchange contracts are reflected in
current period earnings. Based upon our forwardifor currency exchange contracts related to theserwies, an increase of 10% in exchange ra
March 31, 2011 would have increased our generabdnunistrative expenses by approximately $883,000ing fiscal 2011 and 2010, a loss of
$162,000 and a gain of $1,565,000, respectivelyewecorded in general and administrative expedsego the change in the value of the forward
foreign currency exchange contracts subsequenmttasieg into the contracts.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is set farilthe consolidated financial statements, commenompage F-1 included herein.

It em 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accoumiés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and proesda ensure that the information required toibelased by the Company in the reports that is
or submits under the Securities Exchange Act o#4li83ecorded, processed, summarized and repoithih\the time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and farmdghat such information is accumulated and madevk to the officers who certify the

Company'’s financial reports and to other memberseofor management and the Board of Directors psppate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.
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Under the supervision and with the participatioomanagement, including our Chief Executive Offig@njef Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting
Officer, we have conducted an evaluation of theai¥eness of our disclosure controls and procedasedefined in Exchange Act Rules 13de) anc
15d-15(e). Based on this evaluation, our Chief Eiige Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chietéounting Officer concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effectvefdarch 31, 2011.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting isstned to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control may not prevent mésiments. Further, an evaluation of the effectissré internal control may not detect misstatements
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabi and maintaining adequate internal controf émancial reporting as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the sujséom and with the participation of managementluding our Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officer, wenducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofrdernal control over financial reporting based
on the criteria established in thernal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, managemerlwded that the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting was effective as of March
31, 2011.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fioial reporting as of March 31, 2011 has been addiy the Compang’independent registered put
accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP. Their assesstrigfncluded in the accompanying Report of Indefgem Registered Public Accounting Firm on
internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company'’s internatebover financial reporting during the fourth gtex ended March 31, 2011 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, the Company’s internal control over finaneegporting.

It em 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the Proxy Statement.
It em 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the Proxy Statement.
It em 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners And Management and Related Stockholder Matts
The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the Proxy Statement.
Ite m 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transdions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the Proxy Statement.
Ite m 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the Proxy Statement.
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| te m 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

a. Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance She:

Consolidated Statements of Inco

Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl¢

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(2) Schedules.

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Number

(3) Exhibits:

Description of Exhibit

PART IV

45

F-2
F-3

F-5

Sl

Method of Filing

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Certificate of Incorporation of the Company

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company

Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company

Amended and Restated -Laws of the Compan
Specimen Certificate of the Company’s common
stock

Form of Underwriter's common stock purchase
warrant

1994 Stock Option Pla

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreeme

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any’s Registration Statement
on Form SB-2 declared effective on March 22, 1984 (1994 Registration
Statemer”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (No. 33-97498) declared effective onéyober 14, 1995 (the “1995
Registration Stateme”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the @any’s Annual Report on Form
1C-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1997 (1997 Form 1-K”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the @any’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1998 (‘1998 Form 1-K").

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Conypaproxy statement on
Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on November 25,3

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to ther€otr Report on Form-K filed on
August 24, 201C

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thedl®@gistration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to thedl®@&gistration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to thedl®&gistration Statemet

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to thedl®@&gistration Statemet
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Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6*

1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan

1996 Stock Option Pla

2003 Long Term Incentive Ple

2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan

Registration Rights Agreement among the Comp
and the investors identified on the signature pagt
thereto, dated as of May 18, 2C

Form of Warrant to be issued by the Company tc
investors in connection with the May 2007 Privat
Placemen

2010 Incentive Award Plan

Amendment to Lease, dated October 3, 1996, by
between the Company and Golkar Enterprises, L
relating to additional property in Torrance, Califia

Lease Agreement, dated September 19, 1995, b
between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Compe
relating to the Company’s facility located in
Torrance, Californi:

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated as
April 1, 1997, by and among the Company, Mel
Marks, Richard Marks and Vincent Quek relating
the acquisition of MVR and Unijo

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers a
directors

Second Amendment to Lease, dated March 15, :
between Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Compe
relating to property in Torrance, Califorr

Addendum to Vendor Agreement, dated May 8,
2004, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the
Company

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the @any’s Annual Report on Form
10-KSB for the fiscal year ended March 31, 19

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Pam’s Registration Stateme
on Form S-2 (No. 333-37977) declared effective avéinber 18, 1997 (the “1997
Registration Stateme”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the @am’s Registration Stateme
on Form &8 filed with the SEC on April 2, 200.

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the BrBtatement on Schedule 14A
for the 2004 Annual Shareholders Meeti

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 18, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 18, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the BrBtatement on Schedule 14A
filed on December 15, 201

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tlee@mber 31, 1996 Form 10-Q.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to tB85LRegistration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to tB87LForm 10-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to tB87LRegistration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to tG63210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to tG6410-K.
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Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11*

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16*

10.17*

Form of Orbian Discount Agreement between the
Company and Orbian Cor

Form of Standard Industrial/Commercial M-
Tenant Lease, dated May 25, 2004, between the
Company and Golkar Enterprises, Ltd for propert
located at 530 Maple Avenue, Torrance, Califo

Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated October 2¢
2004, among Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de
the Company and Beatrix Flourie Geofft

Amendment No. 3 to Pay-OBean Addendum, dat
August 22, 2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. i
the Compan

Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agreement, dated
August 22, 2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. i
Motorcar Parts of America, In

Lease Agreement Amendment, dated October 1:
2006, between the Company and Beatrix Flourie
Geffroy

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated as
November 20, 2006, between Motorcar Part
America, Inc. and Golkar Enterprises, L

Securities Purchase Agreement among the Com
and the investors identified on the signature pagt
thereto, dated as of May 18, 2C

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
dated as of December 31, 2008, by and betweer
Company and Selwyn Jof

Vendor Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009,
between the Company and AutoZone Parts,

Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement, dated ¢
March 31, 2009, between the Company and
AutoZone Parts, Inc

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tG6410-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to tB6£21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on

November 2, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
October 20, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
November 27, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 18, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriiReport on Form & filed May
5, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriiReport on Form-K filed May
5, 2009.
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Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.18

10.19*

10.20 *

10.21 *

10.22 *

10.23 *

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Revolving Credit and Term Loan Agreement, dat
as of October 29, 2009, between the Company a
Union Bank, N.A. and Branch Banking & Trust
Company

Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of Marc
31, 2009, between the Company and AutoZone |
Inc.

Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement Addend:
dated as of March 31, 2009, between the Compe
and AutoZone Parts, In

Master Vendor Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2
between the Company anc Reilly Automotive, Inc

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2009, betv
the Company and’Reilly Automotive, Inc.

Vendor Agreement Addendum, dated as of Apr
2009 between the Company and O’Reilly
Automotive, Inc.

First Amendment to the Revolving Credit and Te¢

Loan Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2010, betv
the Company and Union Bank, N.A. and Branch

Banking & Trust Compan

Debenture, dated August 24, 2010, issued by
Fenwick Automotive Products Limited to Motorce
Parts of America, Inc

Addendum to Unanimous Shareholders Agreemt
dated August 24, 2010, between Motorcar Parts
America, Inc., Fenwick Enterprises Inc., Escal
Holdings Inc., Fencity Holdings Inc., Jofen Hold#&
Inc., Gordon Fenwick, Paul Fenwick, Joel Fenwic
Stanley Fenwick, Karen Fenwick, Jack Shuster a
FAPL Holdings Inc

Second Amendment to Revolving Credit and Ter
Loan Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2010
between the Company and Union Bank, N.A. ant
Branch Banking & Trust Compar

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Quért€urrent Report on Form 10-
Q filed November 9, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CurrReport on Form &/A filed on
December 23, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutriiReport on Form &/A filed on
December 23, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
January 13, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
January 13, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CutiReport on Form-K filed on
January 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on Form-K filed on
May 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to QuértReport on Form 10-Q filed
on November 8, 2010.
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Method of Filing

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31*

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Third Amendment to Revolving Credit and Term
Loan Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2010
between the Company and Union Bank, N.A. ant
Branch Banking & Trust Compatr

Amended and Restated Debenture, dated Decer
15, 2010, issued by Fenwick Automotive Product
Limited to Motorcar Parts of America, In

Amended and Restated Addendum to Unanimou
Shareholders Agreement, dated December 15, 2
between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Fenwic
Enterprises Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordon Fenwickl,
Fenwick, Joel Fenwick, FAPL, Fenwick Automoti
Products Limited, Introcan Inc., Escal Holdings.|r
Fencity Holdings Inc. and Jofen Holdings |

Consignment Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., Rafko
Logistics Inc., Fenwick Automotive Products
Limited and FAPL Holdings Inc

Fourth Amendment to the Revolving Credit and
Term Loan Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2C
by and among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.,
Union Bank, N.A., and Branch Banking & Trust
Company

Revolving Note, dated as of March 31, 2011,
executed by Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. in f
of Union Bank, N.A.

Revolving Note, dated as of March 31, 2011,
executed by Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. in fa
of Branch Banking & Trust Compat

Purchase Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, by anc
among Motorcar Parts of America, Inc., FAPL
Holdings Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordon Fenwick, Pz
Fenwick and Joel Fenwic

Hold Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, between
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and FAPL Holdir
Inc.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
December 13, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport on Form 8-K filed on
December 21, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
December 21, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
March 7, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
April 7, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on

April 7, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
April 7, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 12, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 12, 2011.
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Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing
10.37 Escrow Agreement, dated May 6, 2011, by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to CutiReport on Form 8-K filed on
among Motorcar parts of America, Inc., FAPL May 12, 2011.
Holdings Inc., Jack Shuster, Gordon Fenwick, Pz
Fenwick, Joel Fenwick and Strikeman Elliott L
10.38 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, datec Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport on Form 8-K filed on
May 6, 2011, by and among Fenwick Automotive May 12, 2011.
Products Limited, Introcan Inc., Manufactures an
Traders Trust Company, M&T Bank and such ott
lenders from time to time as may become a party
thereta
14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Etr Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to t82Form 1-K.
211 List of Subsidiarie! Filed herewith
23.0 Consent of Independent Registered Public Filed herewith.
Accounting Firm Ernst & Young LLI
311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant  Filed herewith
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaott Filed herewith.
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2
31.3 Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuai  Filed herewith.
Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2
321 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Filed herewith.

*

Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley £
2002

Portions of this exhibit have been deghconfidential treatment by the SEC.
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SI GNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 15(d) ®Sbcurities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrastduly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC

Dated: June 13, 2011 By: /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Officel

Dated: June 13, 2011 By:  /s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has kmgned by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant in the capacities and on the dat#isated:

/s/ Selwyn Joffe Chief Executive Officer and Director June 13, 2011
Selwyn Joffe (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ David Lee Chief Financial Officer June 13, 2011
David Lee (Principal Financial Officer
/s/ Kevin Daly Chief Accounting Officer June 13, 2011
Kevin Daly (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ Mel Marks Director June 13, 2011
Mel Marks
/s/ Scott Adelsol Director June 13, 2011
Scott Adelsor
/s/ Rudolph Borne: Director June 13, 2011
Rudolph Bornec
/s/ Philip Gay Director June 13, 2011
Philip Gay
/s/ Duane Millet Director June 13, 2011
Duane Miller
/s/ Jeffrey Mirvis Director June 13, 2011

Jeffrey Mirvis
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. sugsidiaries’ internal control over financial refimg as of March 31, 2011 based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiratiaf the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and sdizsies’ management is responsible for maintaining effedtiernal control over financial reportin
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting included retaccompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company’s infezaatrol over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordx@r financial reporting, assessing the risk that
material weakness exists, testing and evaluatiaglésign and operating effectiveness of internaifrobbased on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necesstéugy dircumstances. We believe that our audit plesia reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesssssuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includb®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheanaintenance of records that, in reasonableldetai
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idexeasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance with generally aecepccounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amedtdirs of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opatstion of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohover financial reporting may not prevent or @getaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégibecause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. asubsidiaries maintained, in all material respeaffgctive internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2011, based on the COS8€ria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheet of Motorcar Parts of America, Ind. subsidiaries as of March 31, 2011 and 2010, laadelated consolidated statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each efttiee years in the period ended March 31, 20Madbrcar Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries
and our report dated June 13, 2011 expressed arlifieg opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californi
June 13, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoR=ts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. armsgliaries (the “Company”) as of March 31,
2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statsroéimcome, shareholders’ equity, and cash fliawshe each of the three years in the period
ended March 31, 2011. Our audits also includediti@macial statement schedule listed in the indetteah 15(a)(2). These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to express an opioin these financial statements and schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstatts of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reablmnassurance about whether the financial statisnaea free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgadhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfirancial statement presentation. We beli
that our audits provide a reasonable basis foopinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all matespects, the consolidated financial position of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiarieslatch 31, 2011 and 2010 and the consolidatedteesfitheir operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Mat¢cR@L1, in conformity with U.S. generally acceps&adounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when consitlier relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Motorcar Parts of Amer

Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sMarch 31, 2011, based on criteria establishddternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by

the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission and our report dated June 13,, 2Xpressed an unqualified opinion ther
/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, Californii
June 13, 201
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivabl— net
Inventory— net
Inventory unreturne
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Plant and equipmer— net
Long-term core inventor— net
Long-term core inventory depos
Long-term deferred income tax
Long-term note receivabl
Intangible asset— net
Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued salaries and wag
Accrued worker compensation clairr
Customer finished goods returns acci
Income tax payabl
Deferred income taxe
Other current liabilitie!
Current portion of term loa
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Total current liabilities
Term loan, less current portit
Deferred core revent
Other liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current portion
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholders' equit

Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,000s0ares authorized; none issued Series A jumidicpating

Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31,

preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 20,886es authorized; none isstL

Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 20,000:886es authorized; 12,078,271 and 12,026,021 share
issued; 12,063,871 and 12,026,021 outstanding athvl, 2011 and 2010, respectiv
Treasury stock, at cost, 14,400 shares of comromk &it March 31, 2011 and none at March 31, Z

Additional paic-in capital

Additional pai-in capita-warrant
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Retained earning

Total shareholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2011 2010
$ 2,477,000 $ 1,210,00
304,00 451,00(
10,635,00 5,553,001
29,733,00 31,547,00
5,031,001 3,924,00
5,658,001 8,391,001
6,299,00 2,735,00
60,137,00 53,811,00
11,663,00 12,693,00
80,558,00 67,957,00
25,984,00 25,768,00
1,346,00 951,00
4,863,00! -
5,530,001 6,304,00!
1,784,00 1,549,00
$ 19186500 $ 169,033,00
$ 3897300 $ 31,603,00
2,181,00 1,863,001
3,993,00! 3,590,001
1,144,00 1,574,00
9,161,00! 7,454,00
322,00 678,00
136,00 -
460,00( 697,00
2,000,001 2,000,00!
372,00 953,00
58,742,00 50,412,00
5,500,001 7,500,001
8,729,00 6,061,00!
1,255,001 995,00
462,000 445,00
74,688,00 65,413,00
121,00 120,00
(89,000 -
93,140,00 92,792,00
1,879,001 1,879,001
(349,000 (1,426,001
22,475,00 10,255,00
117,177,00 _ 103,620,00
$ 191,865,00 $ 169,033,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended March 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net sales $ 161,285,000 $ 147,225,000 $ 134,866,00
Cost of goods sold 109,903,00 105,898,00 95,319,00
Gross profit 51,382,00 41,327,00 39,547,00
Operating expense
General and administratiy 17,033,00 15,389,00 19,479,00
Sales and marketir 6,537,00! 6,019,00! 5,242,00!
Research and developme 1,549,001 1,421,001 1,993,001
Acquisition costs 879,00( 191,00( -
Impairment of goodwill - - 2,191,00!
Total operating expens: 25,998,00 23,020,00 28,905,00
Operating incom 25,384,00 18,307,00 10,642,00
Other expense (income
Gain on acquisitiol - (1,331,001 -
Interest expens 5,595,001 4,710,001 4,215,001
Interest income (240,000 - (19,000
Income before income tax exper 20,029,000 14,928,00 6,446,00!
Income tax expense 7,809,001 5,282,001 2,589,001
Net income $ 12,220,000 $ 9,646,000 $ 3,857,00!
Basic net income per share $ 1.01 $ 0.8C $ 0.32
Diluted net income per share $ 0.9¢ $ 0.8C $ 0.3
Weighted average number of shares outstan:
Basic 12,042,42 11,988,69 11,995,62
Diluted 12,334,33 12,116,61 12,086,122

The accompanying notes to consolidated financékgstients are an integral part hereof.
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Balance at March 31
2008
Compensation
recognized
under employe
stock plans

Retirement of
common stock
in satisfaction ¢
shareholder no
receivable

Unrealized loss ol
investments, n¢
of tax

Foreign currency
translation

Net income

Comprehensive
Income

Balance at March 31
2009

Compensation
recognized
under employe
stock plans

Exercise of optior

Tax benefit from
employee stocl
options
exercisec

Impact of tax
benefit on APIC
pool

Unrealized gain
on investments
net of tax

Foreign currency
translatior

Net income

Comprehensive
Income

Balance at March 31
2010

Compensation
recognized
under employe
stock plans

Exercise of optior

Tax benefit from
employee stocl
options
exercisec

Impact of tax
benefit on APIC
pool

Repurchase of
common stock
including fees

Unrealized gain o
investments, ne
of tax

Foreign currency
translatior

Net income

Comprehensive
Income

Balance at March 31
2011

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended March 31,

Common Stock Treasury Stock
Additional
Paid-in Additional Accumulated Retained
Capital Paid-in  Shareholdel Other Earnings
Common Capital Note Comprehensive (Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares  Amount Stock Warrants Receivable Income (Loss) Deficit) Total Income (Loss)
12,070,55 121,00( - - 92,663,000 1,879,00 (682,00() 360,00( (3,248,00)  91,093,00
- - - - 508,00( - - - - 508,00(
(108,53:) (1,000 - - (712,000 - 682,00( - - (31,000
- - - - - - - (64,000 - (64,000 $ (64,000
- - - - - - - (2,280,001 - (2,280,001 (2,280,001
- - - - - - - - 3,857,00! 3,857,001 3,857,001
$ 151300
11,962,02 120,00( - - 92,459,000 1,879,00( - (1,984,001 609,00( 93,083,00
- - - - 136,00( - - - - 136,00(
64,00( - - - 152,00( - - - - 152,00(
- - - - 69,00( - - - - 69,00(
- - - - (24,000 - - - - (24,000
- - - - - - - 80,00( - 80,00( $ 80,00(
- - - - - - - 478,00( - 478,00( 478,00(
- - - - - - - - 9,646,00! 9,646,00! 9,646,00!
$ 1020400
12,026,02 120,00( - - 92,792,000 1,879,00 - (1,426,001 10,255,000 103,620,00
- - - - 59,00( - - - - 59,00(
52,25( 1,00¢ - 199,00( - - - - 200,00(
- - - - 123,00( - - - - 123,00(
- - - - (33,000 - - - - (33,000
- - (14,400 (89,000 - - - - - (89,000
- - - - - - - (3,000 - (3,000 $ (3,000
- - - - - - - 1,080,001 - 1,080,001 1,080,001
- - - - - - - - 12,220,00 12,220,00 12,220,00
$__13,207,00
12,078,27 $ 121,00( (14,400 $ (89,000 $93,140,000 $1,879,001 $ - $ (349,000 $ 22,475,000 $117,177,00




The accompanying notes to consolidated financékstents are an integral part hereof.

F-3




Table of Content

MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31,

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activitie

Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible asse

Amortization of deferred gain on s-leasebacl

Amortization of deferred financing cos
Provision for inventory reserve
Provision for customer payment discrepen:

Net (recovery of) provision for doubtful accou

Deferred income taxe
Shar-based compensation expel
Gain on acquisitiol

Impairment of goodwil

Impact of tax benefit on APIC pool from stock optsoexercise:

(Gain) loss on redemption of sh-term investmen

Loss on disposal of ass¢

Changes in current assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Inventory unreturne:
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Customer finished goods returns acci
Income tax payabl
Deferred core revent
Long-term accounts receivak
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory deposi
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of plant and equipm:
Purchase of business
Long-term note receivabl
Change in short term investments
Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under revolving log
Repayments under revolving lo
Proceeds from term loe
Repayments of term lo¢
Deferred financing cos'

Payments on capital lease obligatit
Exercise of stock optior

Excess tax benefit from employee stock options@sed
Impact of tax benefit on APIC pool from stock opisoexercise:

Repurchase of common stock, including f
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in ci

Cash — Beginning of year

Cash — End of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period f

Interest, ne

Income taxes, net of refun
Non-cash investing and financing activiti

Settlement of accounts receivable in connectioh witrchase of busine

Property acquired under capital lei
Holdback on purchase of busines
Note payable on purchase of busin

2011 2010 2009
$ 12,220,00 9,646,001 3,857,001
3,126,001 3,238,001 3,136,001
774,00 644,00( 326,00(
(307,00) (524,00() (521,00()
86,000 35,00( 2
1,804,001 878,00 36,000
850,00( 182,00( 915,00(
(38,000 898,00( 225,00(
2,358,001 (70,000 (2,252,00)
59,00( 136,00( 508,00(

= (1,331,00) -

- - 2,191,001

33,00( 24,00( 5
(25,000 5,00( -
37,00 13,00( 4,00
(5,894,00) 11,917,00 (11,521,00)
1,305,001 (3,936,001 6,833,000
(1,107,00) 784,00 (584,00)
(3,527,00) (1,054,001 369,00
(245,00() (832,00() 207,00(
8,885,001 7,122,000 (10,179,00)
1,707,001 (1,097,001 1,732,001
(381,00() (518,00() 870,00(
2,668,000 127,00( 3,007,000

- - 767,00
(13,885,00) (5,692,00) (9,894,00)
(216,00() (1,317,00) (1,974,00)
448,00( (931,00() 864,00(
10,735,00 18,347,00 (11,078,00)
(1,566,00) (1,055,001 (2,317,00)
(464,00() (2,622,00) (7,462,00)
(4,863,00) ; ;
170,00( 11,00( (67,000
(6,723,00) (3,666,001 (9,846,001
46,200,00 31,600,00 52,310,00
(46,200,00) (53,200,00) (30,710,00)
- 10,000,00 -
(2,000,00) (500,00) 2
(16,000) (414,00() -
(975,00) (1,630,00) (1,868,00)
199,00( 152,00( -
123,00( 69,00( 5
(33,000 (24,000 -
(89,000 = 2
1,000 - -
(2,790,00) (13,947,00) 19,732,00
45,00( 24,00( (291,00()
1,267,001 758,00 (1,483,00)
1,210,001 452,00 1,935,001
$ 2,477,000 1,210,001 452,001
$ 5,270,001 4,568,001 4,048,001
8,073,00! 5,636,001 3,404,00!
$ - 1,123,001 -
351,001 - 357,001

= 2 800,00(

- - 722,00

5 5 682,001

Retirement of common stock in satisfaction of shalder note receivab

The accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Background and Organization

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidisige “Company” or “MPA”") remanufacture, producelaistribute alternators and starters for
import and domestic cars and light trucks. Theptamement parts are sold for use on vehicles ariigal vehicle purchase. These automotive pars ar
sold to automotive retail chain stores and warebdistributors throughout the United States anda@arand to major automobile manufacturers.

The Company obtains used alternators and stacmmsnonly known as Used Cores, primarily from itstomers as trade-ins. It also purchases Used
Cores from vendors (core brokers). The customerstgredit to the consumer when the used partisned to them, and the Company in turn
provides a credit to the customers upon returhécdompany. These Used Cores are an essentiaiahasaded for the remanufacturing operations.
The Company has remanufacturing, warehousing aipgisly/receiving operations for alternators andteta in Mexico, California, Singapore and
Malaysia. In addition, the Company utilizes thiry warehouse distribution centers in Edison, Neveey and Springfield, Oregon. The Company
also uses a warehouse distribution facility in BeiConnecticut.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Segment Reporting

The Company currently operates in one businessesgigoursuant to the guidance provided under tharfial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC").

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiaestade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Amerina,and its wholly owned subsidiaries, MVR
Products Pte. Ltd., Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., Motorcar Pde Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Motorcar Parts of&km Inc. All significant inter-company
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash

The Company maintains cash balances in local ccigsiin Singapore and Malaysia and in local and doBar currencies in Mexico for use by the
facilities operating in those foreign countrieseTdalances in these foreign accounts translatedJrs. dollars at March 31, 2011 and 2010 were
$685,000 and $569,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The allowance for doubtful accounts is developezkHaupon several factors including customer cigitity, historical write-off experience and any
known specific issues or disputes which exist ahefbalance sheet date. Accounts receivable attenvoff only when all collection attempts have
failed. The Company does not require collaterabfmrounts receivable.

The Company has receivable discount programs that heen established with certain customers amdréspective banks. Under these programs
Company has the option to sell those customergivables to those banks at a discount to be agneed at the time the receivables are sold. Once the
customer chooses which outstanding invoices amggoi be made available for discounting, the Corpigiaam accept or decline the bundle of invoices
provided. The receivable discount programs aremeonurse, and funds cannot be reclaimed by themestor its bank after the related invoices have
been discounted.
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I nventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process anchtirecore value of finished goods. Used
Cores, the Used Core value of work in process hadkemanufactured Core portion of finished good<ckassified as long-term core inventory as
described below under the caption “Long-term Coreshtory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid, and is
based upon the direct costs of material and aoatitan of labor and variable and fixed overheadsGEhe cost of non-core inventory is evaluated at
least quarterly during the fiscal year and adjustedecessary to reflect current lower of cost arket levels. These adjustments are determined for
individual items of inventory within each of thedle classifications of non-core inventory as fokklow

» Nor-core raw materials are recorded at average ctéthvis based on the actual purchase price of ratemals on hand. The average cost is
updated quarterly. This average cost is used imtrentory costing process and is the basis facation of materials to finished goods during
the production proces

« Non-core work in process is in various stages of petidn, is on average 50% complete and is valué&®% of the cost of a finished good.
Non-core work in process inventory historically compsdess than 3% of the total I-core inventory balanc

» Finished goods cost includes the average costroftore raw materials and allocations of labor eeribble and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed ovetheests are determined based on the average aswialf the production facilities over the
prior twelve months which approximates normal cétga®his method prevents the distortion in cost twould occur during short periods of
abnormally low or high production. In addition, tBempany excludes certain unallocated overhead asislkeverance costs, duplicative facility
overhead costs, and spoilage from the calculatimhexpenses them as period costs. For the yeaes éarch 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, costs
of approximately $1,378,000, $1,314,000, and $2(I® respectively, were considered abnormal ans éixcluded from the cost calculation
and charged directly to cost of sal

The Company records an allowance for potentiallyeeg and obsolete inventory based upon recenttgatesy, the quantity of inventory dmand, ant

a forecast of potential use of the inventory. Tloenpany reviews inventory on a monthly basis to fifgexcess quantities and part numbers that are
experiencing a reduction in demand. In generat, panbers with quantities representing a one teettyear supply are partially reserved for at rates
based upon management’s judgment and consistemtigirical rates. Any part numbers with quangitiepresenting more than a three-year supply
are reserved for at a rate that considers possioég and liquidation values and may be as higld@%o of cost if no liquidation market exists foeth
part.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are didgeand are based on management’s judgment anwll&dge of current and projected industry
demand. The reserve estimates may, therefore visedeif there are changes in the overall markettfe Company’s products or market changes that,
in management’s judgment, impact the Company’stahd sell or liquidate potentially excess or olege inventory.

The Company records vendor discounts as a reduatimventories that are recognized as a redu¢tiaost of sales as the inventories are sold.
Inventory Unreturnet

Inventory unreturned represents the Company’s astinbbased on historical data and prospectiverirdtion provided directly by the customer, of
finished goods shipped to customers that the Cognpapects to be returned after the balance shéetBacause all cores are classified separately as

long term assets, the inventory unreturned balaratades only the added unit value of finished godthe return rate is calculated based on expected
returns within the normal operating cycle of onatyé\s such, the related amounts are classifiediirent assets.
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Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mansdihe Company'’s finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:
e Used Cores purchased from core brokers and hehdémtory at the Compa’s facilities,
e Used Cores returned by the Comg’s customers and held in inventory at the Com’s facilities,

» Used Cores returned by e-users to customers but not yet returned to the @ompre classified as Remanufactured Cores uetjl dne
physically received by the Compar

« Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabthe Compar’s facilities; anc

* Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of finished goods sold to the customer.tRese Remanufactured Cores, the
Company expects the finished good containing thedwifactured Core to be returned under the Compayerieral right of return policy o
similar Used Core to be returned to the Companthbycustomer, in each case, for cre

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averagmtital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost and
market value of Used Cores for which sufficientergicpurchases have occurred are deemed the sahree@gchase price for purchases that are made
in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average histbpurchase prices is primarily made up of Usede§ for newer products related to more recent
automobile models or products for which there lissa liquid market. The Company must purchase tbiesel Cores from core brokers because its
customers do not have a sufficient supply of theseer Used Cores available for the core exchanggram.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainambre broker transactions and are valued basexverage purchase price. The average
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent avtdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@w@ds in subsequent periods even as the sou
these Used Cores shifts to the core exchange progra

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowlezast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, the Company uses core broker
price lists to assess whether Used Core cost exdégeld Core market value on an item by item bakis.primary reason for the insufficient recent
purchases is that the Company obtains most ofsedllCore inventory from the customer core exchanggram.

The Company classifies all of its core inventoasdong-term assets. The determination of the teng-classification is based on its view that the
value of the cores is not consumed or realizecdghduring the Company’s normal operating cycléckvis one year for most of the cores recorded in
inventory. According to guidance provided underASB ASC, current assets are defined as “assetsources commonly identified as those which
are reasonably expected to be realized in casbldios consumed during the normal operating cy€line business.” The Company does not believe
that core inventories, which the Company class#g$ong-term, are consumed because the crediedsgon the return of Used Cores offset the
amounts invoiced when the Remanufactured Coreaded in finished goods were sold. The Company doegxpect the core inventories to be
consumed, and thus the Company does not expegsliaeg cash, until its relationship with a customeds, a possibility that the Company considers
remote based on existing long-term customer agretnaad historical experience.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofiBhed goods sold, the Company’s customer will eodsthe Company a Used Core to obtain the

credit the Company offers under its core exchamggram. Therefore, based on the Company’s histicestimate, the Company derecognizes the core
value for these finished goods upon sale, as thepaay believes they have been consumed and the &gnas realized cash.
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The Company realizes cash for only the core exah@nggram shortfall of approximately 4.5%. Thisrstadl represents the historical difference
between the number of finished goods shipped tomers and the number of Used Cores returned tGénepany by customers. The Company does
not realize cash for the remaining portion of tbees because the credits issued upon the retwsexf Cores offset the amounts invoiced when the
Remanufactured Cores included in finished goodeweld. The Company does not expect to realize fcaghe remaining portion of these
Remanufactured Cores until its relationship wituatomer ends, a possibility that the Company cdensiremote based on existing ldegm custome
agreements and historical experience.

For these reasons, the Company concluded thatibis appropriate to classify core inventory agierm assets.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The longterm core inventory deposit account representsdhee of Remanufactured Cores the Company purchesedcustomers, which are held

the customers and remain on the customers’ premibespurchase is made through the issuance oft€sghinst that customerteceivables either ¢

a one-time basis or over an agreed-upon periodciiduits against the customer’s receivable aredoagen the Remanufactured Core purchase price
previously established with the customer. At thmesaime, the Company records the long-term coreritary deposit for the Remanufactured Cores
purchased at its cost, determined as noted undeg-texm Core Inventory. The lortgrm core inventory deposit is stated at the logferost or marke
The cost is established at the time of the trairmatiased on the then current cost, determinedi&siunder Londerm Core Inventory. The differen
between the credit granted and the cost of the-terrg core inventory deposit is treated as a sdlewance reducing revenue. When the purchases ar
made over an agreed-upon period, the long-termingentory deposit is recorded at the same timetadit is issued to the customer for the purchase
of the Remanufactured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reitiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured Cores
purchased, but retained at the customer locatrensains sufficient to support the amounts recoidede longterm core inventory deposit account.
the same time, the mix of Remanufactured Coresvigwed to determine that the aggregate value ofdRefactured Cores in the account has not
changed during the reporting period. The Compamyuares the cost of cores supporting the aggrégadgeterm core inventory deposit account each
quarter. If the Company identifies any permanedtiction in either the number or the aggregate vafube Remanufactured Core inventory mix held
at the customer location, the Company will recordaduction in the long-term core inventory depasitount during that period.

Consignment Agreement

In March 2011, in order to maintain the serviceslevior Fenco’s customers, the Company enteredaimiansignment agreement (the “Consignment
Agreement”) with Rafko Logistics Inc. (the “Conseagt), a subsidiary of FAPL. Pursuant to this agreetythe Company obtained an assignment of
certain of the Consignee’s purchase orders withs@mees vendors and consigned to Consignee the goodbhgmed by the Company pursuant to ¢
assigned purchase orders. All liabilities arisiranf this agreement have been guaranteed by FAPL.

During fiscal 2011, the Company recorded revenaephcosts, of $378,000 from this agreement. Atd¥e81, 2011, under this agreement, $4,16(
was included in accounts receivable — net in tlimaipanying consolidated balance sheets for the sélihe consigned goods. Additonally,
$1,249,000 of finished goods inventory remaine@atsignee’s location in connection with this agreatrat March 31, 2011. Also, included in
accounts payable at March 31, 2011, is approxim&#|312,000 payable to the Consignee’s vendormf@ntory purchased under this agreement.

As a result of the acquisition of Fenco in May 20the Consignment Agreement became an intercomagrgement.

F-8




Table of Content
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which measures deferred income tdeapplying enacted statutory rates in effect
at the balance sheet date to the differences betthegax basis of assets and liabilities and tiegiorted amounts in the financial statements. The
resulting asset or liability is adjusted to reflebanges in the tax laws as they occur. A valuaimwance is provided to reduce deferred tax asset
when it is more likely than not that a portion loé tdeferred tax asset will not be realized.

The primary components of the Companiricome tax provision are (i) the current liakilitr refund due for federal, state and foreign medaxes an
(ii) the change in the amount of the net deferrexine tax asset, including the effect of any changkee valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tippCompany’s ability to generate sufficient fettaxable income. In evaluating this ability,
management considers the Company’s long-term agnesnaith each of its major customers that expireagdious dates through March 2019. Based
on management’s forecast of the Company’s futuegaing results, management believes that it isertikely than not that future taxable income will
be sufficient to realize the recorded deferredassets. Management periodically compares its feteta actual results, and there can be no assuranc
that the forecasted results will be achieved.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less adateduepreciation and amortization. The cost dftaxhs and improvements are capitalized, while
maintenance and repairs are charged to expenseindwened. Depreciation and amortization are predidn a straight-line basis in amounts sufficient
to relate the cost of depreciable assets to opeativer their estimated service lives. Machineny equipment are amortized over a range from seven
to ten years. Office equipment and fixtures arerézexd over a range from three to ten years. Laz@lddmprovements are amortized over the lives of
the respective leases or the service lives ofahsdhold improvements, whichever is shorter. Ammatitn of assets recorded under capital leases is
included in depreciation expense.

Goodwill

Gooduwill is the excess of the purchase price dverfair value of identifiable net assets acquiretlisiness combinations. The Company does not
amortize goodwill but evaluates goodwill for impagnt on an annual basis or more frequently if eventircumstances occur that would indicate a
reduction in fair value of the Company. Such inthcsiinclude, but are not limited to, events oceimstances such as a significant adverse change in
the business climate, unanticipated competitidoss of key personnel, adverse legal or regulademselopments, or a significant decline in the marke
price in the Company’s common stock. The Compadyndi have any goodwill at March 31, 2011 or 2010.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s intangible assets other than goodwélffinite-lived and amortized on a straight-lbasis over their respective useful lives, and are
analyzed for impairment when and if indicatorsropairment exist.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs include fees and costsried to obtain financing. These fees and costam@tized using the straight-line method over the
terms of the related loans and are included irrésteexpense in the Company’s consolidated statesnoéimcome.

Foreign Currency Trandlation
For financial reporting purposes, the functionarency of the foreign subsidiaries is the localrency. The assets and liabilities of foreign operet
are translated into the reporting currency (U.SHadpat the exchange rate in effect at the balateet date, while revenues and expenses areatieshs|

at average exchange rates during the year. Theradated foreign currency translation adjustmemrésented as a component of comprehensive
income or loss in the consolidated statement afesttdders’ equity.
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Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when performantieeb§ompany is complete and all of the followingesia have been met:
» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:
« Delivery has occurred or services have been redd
e The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
e Collectibility is reasonably assure

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippiaint, revenue is recognized on the date of shipinkr products shipped FOB destination,
revenues are recognized on the estimated or atatmlof delivery. The Company includes shipping laaddling charges in its gross invoice price to
customers and classifies the total amount as reveShipping and handling costs are recorded astassies.

Unit value revenue is recorded based on the Companige list, net of applicable discounts andwabmces. The Company allows customers to return
slow moving and other inventory. The Company presiébr such returns of inventory by reducing reweand cost of sales for the unit value of goods
sold that are expected to be returned based ostaibal return analysis and information obtainexhf customers about current stock levels.

The Company accounts for revenues and cost of salamet-of-core-value basis. Management hasrdited that the Company’s business practices
and contractual arrangements result in approxim&@&¥o of the remanufactured alternators and stas@d being replaced by similar Used Cores sent
back for credit by customers under the Companyts eachange program. Accordingly, the Company eedithe value of Remanufactured Cores
from revenue.

When the Company ships a product, it recognizesbéigation to accept a similar Used Core sent haxder the core exchange program by recordi
contra receivable account based upon the RemanuéacCore price agreed upon by the Company amdisimer. Upon receipt of a Used Core, the
Company grants the customer a credit based oneéh@Rufactured Core price billed and restores thesl @ore to on-hand inventory.

When the Company ships a product, it invoices gedastomers for the Remanufactured Core portioth@fproduct at full Remanufactured Core sales
price. For these Remanufactured Cores, the Comamgnizes core revenue based upon an estimdie ddite at which the Company’s customers
will pay cash for Remanufactured Cores in lieuerfding back similar Used Cores for credits under@bmpany’s core exchange program.

In addition, the Company recognizes revenue refetédemanufactured Cores originally sold at a nainimice and not expected to be replaced by a
similar Used Core under the core exchange progdhntike the full price Remanufactured Cores, the @any only recognizes revenue from nomin
priced Remanufactured Cores not expected to bageglby a similar Used Core sent back under tree@arhange program when the Company
believes it has met all of the following criteria:

e The Company has a signed agreement with the custmmwering the nominally priced Remanufactured Garet expected to be replaced t
similar Used Core sent back under the core excharaggam. This agreement must specify the numb&eofianufactured Cores its customer
will pay cash for in lieu of sending back a similzsed Core and the basis on which the nominallyepriRemanufactured Cores are to be
valued (normally the average price per Remanufadt@ore stipulated in the agreeme
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e The contractual date for reconciling the Compamgtords and customer’s records of the number wiimally priced Remanufactured Cores
not expected to be replaced by a similar Used 8ené back under the core exchange program musttbe icurrent or a prior perio

e The reconciliation of the nominally priced Remarutfiaed Cores must be completed and agreed to byudtemer

e The amount must be billed to the custon
The Company has agreed in the past and may intheefagree to buy back Remanufactured Cores. ifleeethce between the credit granted and the
cost of the Remanufactured Cores bought backaseieas a sales allowance reducing revenue. Asuli of the increasing level of Remanufactured
Core buybacks, the Company now defers core revigamethese customers until there is no expectatiahthe sales allowances associated with
Remanufactured Core buybacks from these customikmsfiset Remanufactured Core revenues that waotiietrwise be recognized once the criteria
noted above have been met. At March 31, 2011 ahf,®emanufactured Core revenue of $8,729,000 &i6$,000, respectively, was deferred.
Marketing Allowances
The Company records the cost of all marketing aloges provided to its customers. Such allowanagda sales incentives and concessions.
Voluntary marketing allowances related to a sireglehange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues are
recorded or when such incentives are offered. Qttegketing allowances, which may only be appliedisgt future purchases, are recorded as a
reduction to revenues in accordance with a schesitléorth in the relevant contract. Sales incenéimmounts are recorded based on the value of the
incentive provided. See “Note 14. Commitments andtidgencies” for a description of all marketingpalances.
Advertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs asreduAdvertising expenses for the fiscal years dridarch 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were
$368,000, $212,000 and $227,000, respectively.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by divideigincome by the weighted average number of stire@mmon stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted net income per share includes ffexg if any, from the potential exercise or corsien of securities, such as stock options and
warrants, which would result in the issuance ofeneental shares of common stock.

The following presents a reconciliation of basid ailuted net income per share.

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2010 2009

Net income $ 12,220,000 $ 9,646,000 $ 3,857,00
Basic share 12,042,42 11,988,69 11,995,62

Effect of dilutive stock options and warrai 291,90: 127,92: 90,50+
Diluted shares 12,334,33 12,116,61 12,086,122
Net income per shar

Basic $ 1.01 $ 08C $ 0.32

Diluted $ 09¢ $ 0.8C $ 0.32

The effect of dilutive options and warrants exckidi@ 771,084 shares subject to options and 546sR&88es subject to warrants with exercise prices
ranging from $9.90 to $15.00 per share for the pealed March 31, 2011, (ii) 1,253,982 shares stbjeaptions and 546,283 shares subject to
warrants with exercise prices ranging from $5.0816.00 per share for the year ended March 31,,281d (iii) 1,249,900 shares subject to options
and 546,283 shares subject to warrants with exepises ranging from $6.11 to $15.00 per sharé¢heiyear ended March 31, 2009 — all of which
were anti-dilutive.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyalccepted in the United States (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assasfiiat affect the reported amounts in the conatditifinancial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from those esti@s. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluatestimates, including those related to the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipmeatuation and return allowances for receivablesgimeries, and deferred income taxes; accrued
liabilities; and litigation and disputes.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tztion of sales returns. These estimates are laséte Company’s historical return rates and an
evaluation of estimated sales returns from specifatomers.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tztion of the lower of cost or market value of Iclegm core inventory.

The Company’s calculation of inventory reservelags significant estimates. The basis for the fimegy reserve is a comparison of inventory on
hand to historical production usage or sales vokime

The Company records its liability for self-insunedrkers’ compensation by including an estimatehefltability associated with total claims incurred
and reported as well as an estimate of the lis@sliéssociated with incurred, but not reportedirdadetermined by applying the Company’s historical
claims development factor to its estimate of thbilities associated with incurred and reporteéhtda

The Company uses significant estimates in the tation of its income tax provision or benefit byingsforecasts to estimate whether it will have
sufficient future taxable income to realize itseteéd tax assets. There can be no assurancekeh@bmpany’s taxable income will be sufficient to
realize such deferred tax assets.

The Company uses significant estimates in the arggcalculation of potential liabilities from uncairt tax positions that are more likely than not to
occur.

A change in the assumptions used in the estimatesafes returns, inventory reserves and incomestaguld result in a difference in the related
amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidatedhéiizh statements.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investmerdcounts receivable, accounts payable and attabdities approximate their fair value due to
the short-term nature of these instruments. Theyicar amount of the long-term note receivable agpnates its fair value based on current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers wgithilar credit ratings and for the same remaimmgurity. The carrying amounts of the Revolv
Loan, Term Loan and other long-term liabilities epgmate their fair value based on current ratesrfstruments with similar characteristics.

Stock Options and Share-Based Payments

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company began using tiodified prospective application method of traasifor all its stock-based compensation plans.
The modified prospective application method of $ian requires that stock-based compensation esgba recorded for all new and unvested stock
options that are ultimately expected to vest agéheisite service is rendered from April 1, 2006nfard.

In November 2005, the FASB issued guidance, whiolrides an elective alternative transition methmdcilculating the pool of excess tax benefits
available to absorb tax deficiencies recognizegsgbent to the adoption date. The Company hadfisigmi vested options on the adoption date of the
guidance and therefore has elected to computeRt€ Aool in accordance with this guidance. The sgc¢ax benefits for the years ended March 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008 are presented as a cash otitiowoperations and a cash inflow from financiug\aties.
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The fair value of stock options used to computelstzased compensation expense, which is refleategpiorted results is estimated using the Black-

Scholes option pricing model, which was develogedibe in estimating the fair value of traded amgithat have no vesting restrictions and are fully

transferable. This model requires the input of sctdje assumptions including the expected volgtditthe underlying stock and the expected holding
period of the option. These subjective assumptamadased on both historical and other informat@ianges in the values assumed and used in the
model can materially affect the estimate of faiuea Options to purchase 18,000, 12,000 and 84s@@€es of common stock were granted during the
years ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respbcti

The table below summarizes the Black-Scholes ogtraing model assumptions used to derive the wetjaverage fair value of the stock options
granted during the periods noted.

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2010 2009
Weighted average risk free interest r 2.09% 1.32% 2.61%
Weighted average expected holding period (ye 5.7 4.9C 5.1¢
Weighted average expected volatil 38.81% 25.1%% 40.95%
Weighted average expected dividend y -% -% -%
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 382 % 102 $ 2.0¢

Credit Risk

The majority of the Company’s sales are to leadingpmotive after-market parts suppliers. Managerbelieves the credit risk with respect to trade
accounts receivable is limited due to the Compaargslit evaluation process and the nature of isséazners. However, should the Company’s
customers experience significant cash flow probletres Company'’s financial position and results pémations could be materially and adversely
affected, and the maximum amount of loss that woeléhcurred would be the outstanding receivablariz@, Used Cores expected to be returned by
customer, and the value of the Remanufactured CGmlelsat customers location at March 31, 2011.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan faaicenembers of management. The plan allows ppatits to defer salary, bonuses and
commissions. The assets of the plan are heldrimsaand are subject to the claims of the Compagerteral creditors under federal and state laws in
the event of insolvency. Consequently, the trustlifias as a Rabbi trust for income tax purposé® plan’s assets consist primarily of mutual funds
and are classified as “available for sale.” Theestments are recorded at market value, with angalized gain or loss recorded as other
comprehensive income or loss in shareholders’ ggéidjustments to the deferred compensation olibgadre recorded in operating expenses. The
Company redeemed $207,000 and $70,000 of shortiterestments for the payment of deferred compemséitbilities during the year ended March
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The carrying valuglan assets was $304,000 and $451,000, and-eéfeompensation obligation was $304,000
$451,000 at March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectiialying the years ended March 31, 2011 and 201&pense of $31,000 and $139,000,
respectively, was recorded related to the deferomopensation plan.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

Comprehensive income or loss is defined as thegehamequity during a period resulting from trarigats and other events and circumstances from
non-owner sources. The Company’s total compreheriszome or loss consists of net unrealized incoress from foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized gains or losses on-&rantinvestments. The Company has presented ctmpsesze income or loss on the consolidated
statement of shareholders’ equity.
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted the new guidance issued byAB® on fair value measurements and disclosurealffinancial assets and liabilities on April
1, 2008. This guidance defined fair value as theephat would be received to sell an asset or fmaithnsfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurementidalso established a framework for measuring\falue in accordance with GAAP and expanded
the disclosures required for fair value measuremédn April 1, 2009, the Company adopted this gudgafor all non-financial assets and rfarancial
liabilities, except for items that are recognizedlisclosed at fair value in the financial statetseam a recurring basis, which did not have anyeniit
impact on the Company’s financial condition, resait operations or cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@&¢the “FASB”) issued new guidance on the treatnoé transfers of financial assets which
eliminates the concept of a “qualifying specialymse entity,” changes the requirements for derdeogpfinancial assets, and requires additional
disclosures in order to enhance information regbieusers of financial statements by providingatgetransparency about transfers of financialtas
including securitization transactions, and an gistitontinuing involvement in and exposure to tis&s related to transferred financial assets. mhis
guidance was effective as of the beginning of diyesfirst fiscal year that began after Novemié;, 2009. The adoption of this guidance on April 1,
2010 did not have any impact on the Company’s dateted financial position and results of operasion

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whigtnaisithe consolidation guidance applicable to bbeimterest entities and was effective as o
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that laegafter November 15, 2009. The adoption of thidajuce on April 1, 2010 did not have any impact on
the Company'’s consolidated financial position aeglits of operations.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu

In January 2010, the FASB issued an update whighines new disclosures for transfers in and outesfel 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
and expanded disclosures for activity in Level 3haffair value hierarchy. The update also clagié&isting disclosures regarding the level of
disaggregation for disclosure and disclosures ainpuits and valuation techniques. The new discksand clarifications of existing disclosures were
effective for interim and annual reporting peridginning after December 15, 2009. The adoptiahisfupdate on January 1, 2010 did not have any
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial fimsiand results of operations. The disclosureandigg certain Level 3 activity are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. Cbmpany does not expect the adoption of this gugean April 1, 2011 to have any material
impact on its consolidated financial position aagults of operations.

Disclosure Requirements Related to Financing Rabéds

In July 2010, the FASB issued an update which regutnhanced disclosures about the credit qudlfipancing receivables and the related allowance
for credit losses. Trade accounts receivable wiltunities of one year or less are excluded frondikelosure requirements. Disclosures requiredas o
the end of a reporting period were effective faeiim and annual periods ending on or after Decerhbe2010. The adoption of this guidance on
December 31, 2010 did not have any impact on thagamy’s consolidated financial position and resoftsperations. The disclosures required about
activity that occurs during a reporting period weffective for interim and annual periods beginnimgor after December 15, 2010. The adoption of
this guidance on January 1, 2011 did not have mmpact on the Company’s consolidated financial pmsiand the results of operations.
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When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill ImpairmesgtTor Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Camgy Amounts

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidance whictlifies step 1 of the goodwill impairment test feporting units with zero or negative carrying
amounts. For those reporting units with a carngngpunt equal to or less than zero for which qualédactors indicate that it is more likely thaotn
that a goodwill impairment exists, step 2 of thedwill impairment test will need to be performedhi§ guidance is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning aBecember 15, 2010. Early adoption of this updaigrohibited. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this guidance on April 1, 2011 to hamy material impact on its consolidated financiadifon and the results of operations.

Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformationBusiness Combinatiot

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidance whiekifips that if comparative financial statements gresented, disclosure of revenue and earnings
of a combined entity should be made as though tisenbss combination(s) that occurred during theetiilyear had occurred as of the beginning o
comparable prior annual reporting period only. Tdigdance is effective for business combinationsammated in fiscal years beginning on or after
December 15, 2010. The Company is currently eviagahe impact the adoption of this guidance onil&pr2011 will have on its consolidated
financial position and the results of operations.

3. Long Term Note Receivable

In August 2010, the Company made a loan in the atnofuapproximately $1,894,000 (the “Original Loatd Fenwick Automotive Products Limited
(“Fenco”), a privately-owned Toronto-based manufeet, remanufacturer and distributor of new andaenfiactured aftermarket auto parts, pursuant
to a debenture executed by Fenco in favor of th@2my (the “Original Debenture”). In December 20th@ Company made an additional loan in the
amount of approximately $2,969,000 to Fenco purstcean amended and restated debenture (the “Andesnaid Restated Debenture”), bringing the
total aggregate loan amount to approximately $4(BBB(the “Aggregate Loan”). The Aggregate Loanured on July 31, 2012 and bears interest at a
rate equal to the prime rate plus 8.75% per anmumich is payable in cash quarterly in arrears baigpon December 31, 2010.

The Aggregate Loan is secured by a blanket liealbof Fenco’s assets. FAPL Holdings, Inc. (“FAPLFenco’s parent company, and each of Fenco’s
subsidiaries have also agreed to grant blankes bétheir assets to secure the Aggregate LoanCBmepany’s rights to the payment of any amounts
due in connection with the Aggregate Loan andigfists as a secured party under the security agmtsraee subordinated to the rights of Manufact
and Traders Trust Company (“M&T Bank”), as a lentberand secured party of, Fenco. Upon the occoerefian event of default, as defined in the
Amended and Restated Debenture, the Company mé#greledl amounts under the Amended and Restatedridete immediately due and payable.

In May 2011, the Company acquired all of the ouditag equity of FAPL'’s subsidiaries and as a rethdtAggregate Loan is an intercompany loan
(see Note 22 to the consolidated financial states)en
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4. Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the Company’s intdolgiassets at March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2010.

March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Weighted
Average Gross Gross
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Value Amortization
Intangible assets subject to amortizatior
Trademarks 9 years $ 553,000 $ 189,000 $ 553,000 $ 115,00(
Customer relationshig 12 years 6,464,00! 1,447,001 6,464,00! 799,00(
Non-compete agreemer 5 years 257,00( 108,00( 257,00( 56,00(
Total llyears $ 7,274,000 $ 1,744000 $ 7,274,000 $ 970,00(

Amortization expense related to intangible assets $774,000 and $644,000 during the years endedh\édr, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The
aggregate estimated future amortization expensiatangible assets is as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2012 $ 774,00(
2013 774,00(
2014 738,00(
2015 670,00(
2016 349,00(
Thereaftel 2,225,00!
Total $ 5,530,00

5. Short-Term Investments

The short-term investments account contains thetsais$ the Company’s deferred compensation plaa.pléin’s assets consist primarily of mutual
funds and are classified as available for sale.Jtvapany redeemed $207,000 of short-term invessrfenthe payment of deferred compensation
liabilities during the year ended March 31, 201%.avresult, the Company recorded a gain of $25000@demption of short-term investments for the
payment of deferred compensation liabilities ,ideld in general and administrative expense in tinsaalated statements of income for the year e
March 31, 2011. As of March 31, 2011 and 2010fdiremarket value of the short-term investments $284,000 and $451,000, and the liability to
plan participants was $304,000 and $451,000, réispéc

6. Accounts Receivable— Net
Included in accounts receivable — net are significdfset accounts related to customer allowaneesesl, customer payment discrepancies, returned
goods authorizations (“RGA”) issued for in-trangilit returns, estimated future credits to be predifbr Used Cores returned by the customers and

potential bad debts. Due to the forward lookinginatand the different aging periods of certainneated offset accounts, they may not, at any paint i
time, directly relate to the balances in the opadd accounts receivable.

F-16




Table of Content

Accounts receivable — net is comprised of the feitg at March 31:

2011 2010
Accounts receivabl— trade $ 33,066,000 $ 30,977,00
Allowance for bad debi (1,026,001 (1,141,001
Customer allowances earn (6,644,000 (5,104,001
Customer payment discrepanc (648,000 (553,000
Customer finished goods returns accruals (3,719,000 (2,582,001
Customer core returns accruals (10,394,00) (16,044,00)
Less: total accounts receivable offset accounts (22,431,00) (25,424,00)
Total accounts receivable — net $ 10,635,000 $ 5,553,001

(1) The portion of customer unit returns for whaorih RGA was issued at year end for in-transit atitrns (warranty returns) and finished goods
returns (stock adjustment returns) is recordechasffaet account to accounts receivablenet. The estimated future warranty and stock aatjest
returns accrual portion for which an RGA has natrbessued is presented as a current liability én@Gompany’s consolidated balance sheets at
March 31, 2011 and 2010, of $9,161,000 and $7,484 @spectively

Warranty Returns

The Company allows its customers to return goodseédCompany that their end-user customers hauvened to them, whether the returned item is or
is not defective (warranty returns). The Compargraes an estimate of its exposure to warranty metbased on a historical analysis of the levehis
type of return as a percentage of total unit sélesounts charged to expense for these warrantyngtre considered in arriving at the Company’s net
sales. At March 31, 2011, the warranty return aalonfi$1,520,000 was included under the customerme RGA issued in the above table and the
warranty estimate of $2,245,000 was included inarasr finished goods returns accrual in the codatdid balance sheets.

Change in the Company’s warranty return accruasifollows at March 31:

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of peri $ (3,445,000 $ (2,596,00i)
Charged to expen: 39,742,00 36,096,001
Amounts processed (39,422,00) (35,247,00)
Balance at end of peric $ (3,765,000 $ (3,445,00i)
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7. Inventory

Non-core inventory, Inventory unreturned, Long-termecmventory, and Long-term core inventory depissd@omprised of the following at March 31:

2011 2010
Non-core inventory
Raw materials $ 11,805,000 $ 10,362,00
Work-in-process 104,00( 29,00(
Finished goods 19,579,00 22,919,00
31,488,00 33,310,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (1,755,000 (1,763,001
Total $ 29,733,000 $ 31,547,00
Inventory unreturned $ 5,031,000 $ 3,924,00!
Long-term core inventory
Used cores held at company's facilit $ 22,112,000 $ 14,491,00
Used cores expected to be returned by custo 3,467,00! 3,350,00i!
Remanufactured cores held in finished go 13,994,00 17,955,00
Remanufactured cores held at customers locations 41,829,00! 32,878,00
81,402,00 68,674,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inver (844,000 (717,000
Total $ 80,558,000 $ 67,957,00
Long-term core inventory deposit $ 25,984,000 $ 25,768,00
8. Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment, at cost, are as follows atMad.:
2011 2010
Machinery and equipme $ 27,356,000 $ 26,044,00
Office equipment and fixture 6,167,00! 6,043,00!
Leasehold improvements 7,332,001 7,035,001
40,855,00 39,122,00
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (29,192,00) (26,429,00)
Total $ 11,663,00 $ 12,693,00

Plant and equipment located in the foreign coustribere the Company has production facilities ofi@ccumulated depreciation, totaled $5,790,000
and $5,759,000 at March 31, 2011 and 2010, res@dgtiThese assets constitute substantially allahg-lived assets of the Company located outside
of the United States.
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9. Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases various types of machinery angpuater equipment under agreements accounted fapal leases and included in plant and
equipment as follows at March 31:

2011 2010
Cost $ 1,371,000 $ 6,515,00
Less: accumulated amortization (611,000 (4,782,001
Total $ 760,00 $ 1,733,00
Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 2011hicapital leases are as follows:
Year Ending March 31,
2012 $ 398,00(
2013 299,00(
2014 178,00(
Total minimum lease paymer 875,00(
Less amount representing interest (41,000
Present value of future minimum lease payn 834,00(
Less current portio 372,000
$__ 462,000

On October 26, 2005, the Company entered into d@ataale-leaseback agreement with a bank. Theeaggat provided the Company with $4,110,000
in equipment financing repayable in monthly instedhts of $81,000 over the 60 month term of thedeageement, with a one dollar purchase option
at the end of the lease term. The financing arnavege has an effective interest rate of 6.75%. Toegeds from the agreement were used to redut
outstanding balance in the Company’s line of cretit the bank, which had been used in fiscal 2@0Bind the purchase of fixed assets.

Assets financed under the agreement had a netu@o& of $1,517,000. The difference between tharfading provided, which was based on the fair
market value of the equipment, and the net booltevaf the equipment financed was accounted fordefexred gain on the sale-leaseback agreement.
The deferred gain was amortized at a monthly ra§8,000 over the estimated five year life of tapital lease asset, which concluded in October
2010, and was accounted for as an offset to geapthhdministrative expenses. At March 31, 2011281d, the deferred gain remaining to be
amortized was $0 and $319,000, respectively.

10. Debt

In October 2009, the Company entered into a remgleredit and term loan agreement (the “Credit Agrent”), with its bank and one additional
lender (the “Lenders”), which permits the Compamporrow up to a total of $45,000,000 (the “Crésditility”). The Credit Facility is comprised of

a revolving facility with a $7,000,000 letter ofedlit sub-facility and (ii) a term loan. The Compangy borrow on a revolving basis up to an amount
equal to $35,000,000 minus all outstanding letfaredit obligations minus a borrowing reserve @f300,000 (the “Revolving Loan”). The borrowing
reserve remains in effect only if the Company iyt a receivable discount program pursuant tekvits accounts receivable owed to the Company
by its largest customer are being discounted. tra toan is in the principal amount of $10,000,0@ “Term Loan”). The Lenders hold a security
interest in substantially all of the Company’s ésse

The Credit Agreement, among other things, requfresCompany to maintain certain financial covenantduding tangible net worth, fixed charge
coverage ratio and leverage ratio covenants. Thepgaay was in compliance with all financial coversamtder the Credit Agreement as of March 31,
2011.

The Term Loan matures in October 2014 and requpiiiesipal payments of $500,000 on a quarterly b&die Revolving Loan expires in October
2011 and provides the Company the option to requesd three one-year extensions.

F-19




Table of Content

In May 2010, the Company entered into a first ameerat to the Credit Agreement with its Lenders. Tisendment provides, among other things,
the borrowing reserve against the Company’s Rergliioan commitment amount be increased from $708@0to $10,000,000.

In November 2010, the Company entered into a seaorehdment to the Credit Agreement with its LendBnés amendment, among other things,
extended the expiration date of the Revolving Lma@ctober 2012.

In December 2010, the Company entered into a Hiitdndment to the Credit Agreement with its LendBgés amendment, among other things,
eliminated the minimum LIBOR lending rate with respto the Term Loan.

In April 2011, the Company entered into a fourtheaaiment to the Credit Agreement, which was effectis of March 31, 2011, with its Lenders. T
amendment, among other things, (i) increased treuatithe Company may borrow on a revolving basisf$35,000,000 to $50,000,000 and (ii)
amended the definition of permitted acquisitiondemthe Credit Agreement.

There was no outstanding balance on the Revolvaaplat March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Toragany had reserved $1,126,000 of the
Revolving Loan for standby letters of credit forners’ compensation insurance and $3,536,000 fomeercial letters of credit as of March 31, 2011.
As of March 31, 2011, $45,338,000 was availablecutide Revolving Loan, and of this, $10,000,000 veserved for use in the event the Company’s
largest customer discontinued its current praaifdeaving the Company’s receivables discounted.

The Revolving Loan and the Term Loan bear intesietie bank’s reference rate, plus an applicablgimaor a London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR?”) rate, plus an applicable margin, as sédelcby the Company in accordance with the Crediedment. The reference rate is, as further
described in the Credit Agreement, the higher efltank’s announced base rate and the Federal fatedplus 1/2 percent. The applicable margins are
determined quarterly on a prospective basis afogétbelow:

Leverage Ratio Applicable LIBOR Margin Applicable Reference Rate Margin
Less than 1.0:1. 250 basis point 125 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.0:1.0, but less* 275 basis point
1.5:1.0 150 basis point
Greater than or equal to 1.5:: 300 basis point 175 basis point

11. Accounts Receivable Discount Programs

The Company has established receivable discougtams with certain customers and their respectargk®. Under these programs, the Company
sell those customers’ receivables to those ban&giagcount to be agreed upon at the time thevalkss are sold. These discount arrangements have
allowed the Company to accelerate collection ofauers’ receivables aggregating $134,867,000 ab¢b$2,000 for the years ended March 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively, by a weighted average 0fd2®'s and 334 days, respectively. On an annudiasi$, the weighted average discount rate o
receivables sold to the banks during the yearscehMich 31, 2011 and 2010 was 3.9% and 4.5%, réspBc The amount of the discount on these
receivables, $4,768,000 and $3,599,000 for thesyeaded March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively re@gded as interest expense.

12. Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Purchases and expenses denominated in currenbasstioan the U.S. dollar, which are primarily rethto the Company’s production facilities
overseas, expose the Company to market risk fromlmmabmovements in foreign exchange rates betwleeJ.S. dollar and the foreign currency. The
Company'’s primary risk exposure is from changeth@rate between the U.S. dollar and the Mexicao pelated to the operation of the Company’s
facility in Mexico. The Company enters into forwdoateign currency exchange contracts to exchan@e dibllars for Mexican pesos in order to
mitigate this risk. In addition, during the yeaded March 31, 2011, the Company began enteringf@mteard foreign currency exchange contracts to
exchange U.S. dollars for Chinese yuan to miti¢fagerisk of exposure from material movements irhexge rates on certain purchases made from
Chinese vendors. The extent to which forward fareigrrency exchange contracts are used is modgifieiddically in response to management’s
estimate of market conditions and the terms angtleaf specific purchase requirements to fund tltm&seas facilities and purchases.
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The Company enters into forward foreign currenagh@xige contracts in order to reduce the impaareidgn currency fluctuations and not to engage
in currency speculation. The use of derivativeriiial instruments allows the Company to reducefsosure to the risk that the eventual cash outflow
resulting from funding the expenses of the foregerations and purchases will be materially affétig changes in exchange rates. The Company
does not hold or issue financial instruments fadimng purposes. The forward foreign currency exgkatontracts are designated for forecasted
expenditure requirements to fund foreign operatemms purchases.

The Company had forward foreign currency exchamgeracts with a U.S. dollar equivalent notionalueabf $9,356,000 and $6,159,000 at March 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The forward foreigmency exchange contracts entered into requir€tmapany to exchange U.S. dollars for foreign
currencies. These contracts generally expire ieaa gr less, at rates agreed at the inceptioneofahtracts. The counterparty to this derivative
transaction is a major financial institution witivestment grade or better credit rating; however,Gompany is exposed to credit risk with this
institution. The credit risk is limited to the pat@l unrealized gains (which offset currency flustions adverse to the Company) in any such cdntrac
should this counterparty fail to perform as contedc Any changes in the fair values of forward fgnecurrency exchange contracts are reflected in
current period earnings and accounted for as aease or offset to general and administrative esggn

The following table shows the effect of the Compamerivative instruments on its consolidated stegsts of income:

Amount of (Gain) Loss Recognized in Income ¢

Location of (Gain) Loss Derivatives
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgin Recognized in Income Years Ended March 31
Instruments under Statement 13: on Derivatives 2011 2010 2009
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: General and administrative expen $ 162,000 $ (1,565,000 $ 1,194,001

The fair value of the forward foreign currency eanbe contracts of $355,000 and $517,000 is inclinipdepaid expenses and other current assets in
the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 284 2@10, respectively.

13. Fair Value Measurements

The Company adopted the guidance related to faievaeasurements on April 1, 2008. The Companydsffair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfertalitiya (an exit price) in the principal or most atageous market for the asset or liability in ededy
transaction between market participants on the ureaeent date. The Company uses a three-tier vatuhterarchy based upon observable and
unobservable inputs:

* Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjusteagtive markets for identical assets or liakehti

» Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricesimilar assets and liabilities in active marketspther inputs that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectligr substantially the full term of the financiakinument

* Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs thasignificant to the fair value measurem

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of olst@ermarket data when available. In instances iiclwtine inputs used to measure fair value fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, tkrfvalue measurement has been determined basike towest level input that is significant to thadr f
value measurement in its entirety. The Companysesament of the significance of a particular iterthe fair value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment, including the considerationngiuits specific to the asset or liability. The follog table sets forth by level within the fair valu
hierarchy, the Companyfinancial assets and liabilities that were actéedifior at fair value on a recurring basis at Ma&h2011 and 2010, accordi
to the valuation techniques we used to determiei fair values.
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March 31, 2011 March 31, 2010
Fair Value Measurements Fair Value Measurements
Using Inputs Considered as Using Inputs Considered as
Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment
Cash - - $ 207,000 $ 207,00( - -

Mutual funds $ 304,000 $ 304,00( - - 244,00( 244,00( - -
Prepaid expenses and othel

current assel

Forward foreign currency

exchange contrac 355,00( - $ 355,00( - 517,00( - $ 517,00( -
Liabilities
Other current liabilitie:
Deferred compensatic 304,00( 304,00( - - 451,00( 451,00( - -

The Company’s short-term investments, which fusdlgferred compensation liabilities, consist okstments in mutual funds. These investments are
classified as Level 1 as the shares of these mfutndé trade with sufficient frequency and volumehable the Company to obtain pricing informa
on an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractparearily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the banks or
foreign currency dealers. During the fiscal yeardesl March 31, 2011 and 2010, a loss of $162,08(Gagain of $1,565,000, respectively, were
recorded in general and administrative expensesdatie change in the value of the forward foreigrrency exchange contracts subsequent to
entering into the contracts.

Disclosures for non-financial assets and non-fireriabilities that are measured at fair valuet lecognized and disclosed at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis, were required prospectivelyirbegg April 1, 2009. During the fiscal years endddrch 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had no
significant measurements of assets or liabilitigfgia value on a nonrecurring basis subsequetitdi initial recognition.

The carrying amounts of cash, short-term investmedcounts receivable, accounts payable and attabdities approximate their fair value due to
the short-term nature of these instruments. Theyicar amount of the long-term note receivable agpnates its fair value based on current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers wgithilar credit ratings and for the same remaimmgurity. The carrying amounts of the Revolv
Loan, Term Loan and other long-term liabilities epgmate their fair value based on current ratesrfstruments with similar characteristics.

14. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Lease Commitments
The Company leases office and warehouse faciliti€alifornia, Tennessee, Malaysia, Singapore aeditb under operating leases expiring through

2017. The Company also has short term contracte@fyear or less covering its third party warehsukat provide for contingent payments based on
the level of sales that are processed throughhita: party warehouse.
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At March 31, 2011, the remaining future minimumted¢payments under the above operating leasesdoti@aws:

Year Ending March 31,

2012 $ 2,788,00
2013 1,710,00
2014 1,664,001
2015 1,639,00!
2016 1,018,001
Thereafter 501,00(
Total minimum lease payments $ 9,320,001

During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Comjiacurred total operating lease expenses of $20889 $2,783,000 and $2,792,000, respectively.
Commitments to Provide Marketing Allowances underd-Term Customer Contracts

The Company has or is renegotiating long-term agess with many of its major customers. Under tteggeements, which typically have initial
terms of at least four years, the Company is des@ghas the exclusive or primary supplier for djeticategories of remanufactured alternators and
starters. In consideration for the Company’s design as a customer’s exclusive or primary supptier Company typically provides the customer
with a package of marketing incentives. These itices differ from contract to contract and can ud# (i) the issuance of a specified amount of ts
against receivables in accordance with a scheétlfogh in the relevant contract, (ii) support goparticular customer’s research or marketingreffo
provided on a scheduled basis, (iii) discounts g@um connection with each individual shipmenpodduct, and (iv) other marketing, research, store
expansion or product development support. Thestamia typically require that the Company meet amgstandards related to fulfillment, price, and
quality. The Company’s contracts with major custosrexpire at various dates through March 2019.

The Company typically grants its customers markgtitowances in connection with these customerettmse of goods. The Company records the
cost of all marketing allowances provided to itstomers. Such allowances include sales incentivé<ancessions and typically consist of: (i)
allowances which may only be applied against fupinehases and are recorded as a reduction touesém accordance with a schedule set forth in
the long-term contract, (ii) allowances related@tsingle exchange of product that are recordedrediection of revenues at the time the related
revenues are recorded or when such incentivesfiamed, and (iii) allowances that are made in catine with the purchase of inventory from a
customer.
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The following table presents the breakout of alloees discussed above, recorded as a reductiomdoues in the years ended March 31:

2011 2010 2009
Allowances incurred under lo-term customer contrac $ 13,988,000 $ 13,278,000 $ 9,002,00!
Allowances related to a single exchange of pro 17,552,00 14,162,00 11,725,00
Allowances related to core inventory purchase aians 1,455,001 486,00( 2,681,001
Total customer allowances recorded as a reducfioevenues $ 32,995,000 $ 27,926,000 $ 23,408,00

The following table presents the commitments taiirallowances which will be recognized as a chaggnst revenue, and customer Remanufactured
Core purchase obligations which will be recognizedccordance with the terms of the relevant largatcustomer contracts:

Year Ending March 31,

2012 $ 11,799,00
2013 5,032,00!
2014 3,825,00!
2015 3,152,001
2016 3,105,00!
Thereafter 6,460,001
Total marketing allowance $ 33,373,00

Workers Compensation Insurance

Effective January 1, 2007 through the current figear, the Company’s workers compensation inswegudicy has been written on a guaranteed cost
basis (first dollar payment of claims with no detlies). For each of the five years prior to Jagugr2007, the Company purchased workers
compensation insurance on a large deductible plam.Company was, and still is, liable for the f8250,000 of each claim until all claims are sélttle
(essentially self-insured). The Company recordssdimate of its liability for the self-insured piort of its workers’ compensation policy by includin
an estimate of the total claims incurred and regubats well as an estimate of incurred, but notrtedpclaims by applying the Company’s historical
claims development factor to its estimate of inedrand reported claims.

15. Major Customers and Suppliers
The Company'’s four largest customers accountethfofollowing total percentage of net sales andants receivable—trade:

Years Ended March 31,

Sales 2011 2010 2009

Customer A 48% 44% 49%
Customer B (1 18% 24% 23%
Customer C 8% 8% 10%
Customer C 7% 9% 10%
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Accounts receivable- trade
Customer A
Customer E
Customer C
Customer C

2010
26% 24%
13% 15%
17% 31%
6% 4%

(1) One of the Company’s largest customers wasised| by another of the Compasyargest customers. Therefore, the percentagetcfates for th

year ended March 31, 2009 includes the combinedales of these custome

The Company’s largest supplier accounted for thlevidang total percentage of raw materials purchases

Significant supplier purchases
Supplier A

16. Income Taxes

The income tax expense (benefit) for the years eéitizrch 31 is as follows:

Current tax expens

Federa

State

Foreign

Total current tax expense
Deferred tax expense (bene

Federa

State

Foreign

Total deferred tax expense (benefit)
Total income tax expense

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2010 2009
13% 29% 25%
Years Ended March 31,
2011 2010 2009
$ 4,797,000 $ 4,203,000 $ 2,831,00
718,00( 1,121,001 1,260,001
267,00( 161,00( 561,00(
5,782,001 5,485,001 4,652,00!
1,206,001 (117,000 (1,149,001
821,00 109,00( (914,000
- (195,000 -
2,027,000 (203,000 (2,063,001
$ 7,809,000 $ 528200 $ 2,589,00
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Deferred income taxes consist of the following atrivh 31.:

2011 2010
Assets
Accounts receivable valuatic $ 3,185000 $ 2,719,00!
Estimate for return - 1,878,001
Allowance for customer incentive 720,00( 642,00(
Inventory obsolescence rese 993,00( 989,00(
Stock options 1,251,001 1,282,001
Intangible amortizatio 504,00( 450,00(
Deferred core revent 1,268,001 798,00(
Claims payabl 788,00( 618,00(
Acquisition cos! 336,00( -
Other 1,698,001 2,114,001
Total deferred tax assets $ 10,743,000 $ 11,490,00
Liabilities
Prepaid expenst $ (591,000 $ (586,000)
Accelerated depreciatic (733,000 (1,135,001
Estimate for return (1,838,001 -
Other (713,000 (427,000
Total deferred tax liabilities $ (3,875,000 $ (2,148,00I)
Net deferred tax asse $ 6,868,000 $ 9,342,00I
Net current deferred income tax ass $ 5,522,000 $ 8,391,00!
Net lon¢-term deferred income tax assets 1,346,001 951,00(
Total $ 6,868,000 $ 9,342,00I

At March 31, 2011, the Company had no federal petating loss carryforwards, and approximately 82,000 of state net operating loss
carryforwards. The utilization of these net opergtioss carryforwards may be limited due to thgension of the usage of the net operating losses in
certain states. The state net operating loss cawgids expire between 2018 and 2022.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is dependgon the Company’s ability to generate sufficiexiable income. Management believes that it is
more likely than not that future taxable incomel Wwé sufficient to realize the recorded deferredassets.

For the year ended March 31, 2011, 2010, and 26@%rimary components of the Companiricome tax provision were (i) the current liglililue tc
federal, state and foreign income taxes and @)diange in the amount of the net deferred incaxadset due to a change in the deferred tax rate.
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The difference between the income tax expenseedetteral statutory rate and the Company'’s effedéx rate is as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2010 2009
Statutory federal income tax re 34% 34% 34%
State income tax rate, net of federal ber 3% 5% 4%
Change in deferred tax re 2% -% -%
Foreign income taxed at different ra (1) % (5) % 1) %
Other income tax 1% 1% 3%
39% 35% 4C%

During the current fiscal year, the Company recopegian increase of $52,000 in the liability foreswgnized tax benefits in the consolidated
statements of income.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income taurres in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and variatste and foreign jurisdictions with varying statut
of limitations. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRB&d an ongoing tax examination of the federal &mrns for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2!
In November 2009, the IRS expanded its ongoingetamination of the federal tax returns to incluake fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. In May
2010, the IRS concluded its examination of the Camnyfs federal income tax returns for the fiscal 2@dd 2008 tax years. The IRS required no
changes to the Company’s tax returns for thosalfigears as filed.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeafninrecognized tax benefits is as follows at MeaBd :

2011 2010 2009
Balance at beginning of peri $ 711,000 $ 925,000 $ 663,00(
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeat 128,00( 27,00( 287,00(
Additions for tax positions of prior ye. 298,00( - 10,00(
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye (561,000 (241,000 (35,000
Settlement: - - -
Balance at end of period $ 576,000 $ 711,000 $ 925,00(

The total unrecognized tax benefits that, if re¢og, would affect the Company’s effective tax natere $390,000 as of March 31, 2011. The
Company believes no amounts will significantly i&se or decrease within the next 12 months.

Included in the balance at March 31, 2011, areGEEbpf tax positions for which the ultimate dedbitity is highly certain, but for which there is
uncertainty about the timing of such deductibilBecause of the impact of deferred tax accounbtiggr than interest and penalties, the disallowance
of the shorter deductibility period would not afféite annual effective tax rate, but would accééethe payment of cash to the taxing authorityrto a
earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits as partocoine tax expense, which amounted to $(4,000),
$6,000 and $7,000 during the years ended MarcB@il1, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

17. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all empleyel®o are 21 years of age with at least six moatisgrvice. The plan permits eligible employ
to make contributions up to certain limitationstwihe Company matching 25% of each participatingleyee’s contribution up to the first 6% of
employee compensation. Employees are immediatalygddn their voluntary employee contributions aadt in the Company’s matching
contributions ratably over five years. The Companyatching contribution to the 401(k) plan was $02, $88,000 and $93,000 for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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18. Stock Options

In January 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 ®ptkn Plan (the “1994 Plan”), under which it veaghorized to issue non-qualified stock
options and incentive stock options to key emplsyé@ectors and consultants. After a number ofedi@derapproved increases to this plan, at Mz
31, 2002 the aggregate number of stock optionsoapgrwas 960,000 shares of the Company’s commahk.sthie term and vesting period of options
granted is determined by a committee of the Bo&mirectors with a term not to exceed ten yearsth&t Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders
held on November 8, 2002, the 1994 Plan was ametodedrease the authorized number of shares igsugd 55,000. As of March 31, 2011 and
2010, options to purchase 364,100 and 406,350 slehi@dmmon stock, respectively, were outstandimdeu the 1994 Plan and no options were
available for grant.

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholdergllel December 17, 2003, the shareholders appriree@ampany’s 2003 Long-Term Incentive
Plan (“Incentive Plan”) which had been adoptedt®y€ompany’s Board of Directors on October 31, 2Q08&ler the Incentive Plan, a total of
1,200,000 shares of the Company’s common stock meserved for grants of Incentive Awards and athef Company’s employees are eligible to
participate. The 2003 Incentive Plan will terminateOctober 31, 2013, unless terminated earliehbyCompany’s Board of Directors. As of March
31, 2011 and 2010, options to purchase 1,038,984 &%1,984 shares of common stock, respectivaedyewutstanding under the Incentive Plan and
options to purchase 112,600 and 109,600 shareznwfon stock, respectively, were available for gramfganuary 2011, this Incentive Plan was
replaced and the Company will not make any furgrants of awards under this plan.

In November 2004, the Company’s shareholders aggrttve 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Rithe “2004 Plan”which provides for th
granting of options to non-employee directors. & €Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholders hel&eoruary 25, 2010, the Company’s
shareholders approved an amendment to the 2004HRiaimcreased the number of shares of commok séserved for grant under the 2004 Plan
from 175,000 to 275,000. As of March 31, 2011 a@#i® options to purchase 188,000 and 170,000 sb&msnmon stock, respectively, were issued,
and 87,000 and 105,000 shares of common stock avaitable for grant.

In January 2011, the Company’s shareholders apgriinee2010 Incentive Award Plan (the” 2010 Planhjat will replace the 2003 Long-term
Incentive Plan. Under the 2010 Plan, a total of,@d80 shares of the Company’s common stock wereweddor grants of incentive awards and all of
the Company’s employees are eligible to participaAteof March 31, 2011, no awards were issued utite2010 Plan.

The shares of common stock issued upon exerciag@udviously granted stock option are consideradiasuances from shares reserved for issuance
upon adoption of the various plans. The Companyireg that the option holders provide a writtericebf exercise to the stock plan administrator
payment for the shares prior to issuance of theesha

A summary of stock option transactions follows:




Weighted

Number of Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at March 31, 20! 1,661,45 $ 8.47
Grantec 84,000 $ 5.8%
Exercisec - % -
Cancelled 14,37) % 12.1:
Outstanding at March 31, 20! 1,731,08 $ 8.32
Grantec 12,00C $ 4.7¢
Exercisec (64,000 $ 2.4C
Cancellec (50,750 $ 10.6¢
Outstanding at March 31, 20 1,628,33 $ 8.4F
Grantec 18,00 $ 9.61
Exercisec (52,25 $ 3.8¢
Cancelled (3,000 $ 11.0C
Outstanding at March 31, 2011 1,591,08 $ 8.61

Based on the market value of the Company’s comnmoksit March 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the prartansic value of options exercised was
$530,000, $262,000 and $0, respectively.

The followings table summarizes information abdwt options outstanding at March 31, 2011:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate Weighted Aggregate

Range of Exercise Average Remaining Intrinsic Average Intrinsic

price Shares Exercise Price Life In Years Value Shares Exercise Price Value
$1.800 to $2.16! 102,25( $ 2.1t 19z $ 1,209,661 102,25( $ 21t $ 1,209,61
$2.700 to $3.60 166,85( 3.0¢ 0.7¢ 1,816,99 166,85( 3.0¢ 1,816,99
$4.170 to $6.34 175,00( 5.8¢€ 4.9C 1,421,001 168,00( 5.8¢ 1,360,801
$6.620 to $9.27! 371,90( 8.7: 3.61 1,952,47! 369,90( 8.74 1,938,271
$9.650 to $11.81 362,08 10.1¢ 4.8 1,372,29 362,08 10.1¢ 1,372,29
$11.900 to $13.80 404,00( 12.0t 5.44 779,72( 400,00( 12.0t 772,00(
$14.500 to $14.610 9,00 $ 14.5¢ 7.0t - 7,000 $ 14.52 -
1,591,08 $ 8,552,10 1,576,08 $ 8,469,98

The aggregate intrinsic values in the above tadpeasent the pre-tax value of all in-the-moneyaiif all such options had been exercised on March
31, 2011 based on the Company’s closing stock pfidi3.98 as of that date.

Options to purchase 1,576,084, 1,587,998 and 1082%&hares of common stock were exercisable asaoéiM31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
The weighted average exercise price of optionsoisarle was $8.61, $8.50 and $8.31 as of Marcl2@11, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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A summary of changes in the status of non-vesttksiptions during the fiscal year ended March2R1,1 is presented below.

Weighted

Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at March 31, 20: 40,33¢ $ 1.95
Grantec 18,00C $ 3.8z
Vested (43,330 $ 2.22
Non-vested at March 31, 2011 15,000 $ 3.41

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company began using tfodified prospective application method of traasifor all its stock-based compensation plans.
The Company did not modify the terms of any presiggranted options in anticipation of the adoptidnthis guidance. At March 31, 2011, there was
$39,000 of total unrecognized compensation exp&nse stock-based compensation granted under thies plehich is related to novested shares. Tl
compensation expense is expected to be recogniagchoveighted average vesting period of 1.1 years.

19. Shareholders’ Equity Transactions
Equity Transactior

In May 2007, the Company completed the sale of BIP shares of its common stock at a price ofLfer share and warrants to purchase up to
546,283 shares of its common stock at an exercise pf $15.00 per share. This sale was made thraugrivate placement to accredited investors.
The warrants are callable by the Company if, anathgr things, the volume weighted average tradiief the Compang’ common stock as quot
by Bloomberg L.P. is greater than $22.50 for 10seontive trading days. The fair value of the wasan the date of grant was estimated to be
approximately $4.44 per warrant using the Blackebeh pricing model. The following assumptions wesed to calculate the fair value of the
warrants: dividend yield of 0%; expected volatildfy40.01%; risk-free interest rate of 4.5766%; andcexpected life of five years.

Share Repurchase Program

In March 2010, the Company’s Board of Directorshauized a share repurchase program of up to $3)00&f the Company’s outstanding common
stock from time to time in the open market andringte transactions at prices deemed appropriatedyagement. There is no expiration date
governing the period over which the Company canmpase shares under this program. During July 20@0Company repurchased 14,400 shares at
a total cost of approximately $89,000.

20. Litigation

The Company is subject to various lawsuits andndan the normal course of business. Managemerst woiebelieve that the outcome of these ma
will have a material adverse effect on its finahpiasition or future results of operations.

21. Related Party Transactions

The Company has arrangements or entered into agréenvith three members of its Board of Directdsssrs. Mel Marks, Philip Gay and Selwyn
Joffe.

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directorseag to engage Mr. Mel Marks to provide consultegvices to the Company. Mr. Marks is
currently paid an annual consulting fee of $350,080year. Mr. Marks was paid $350,000 during ezfdhe years ended March 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009. The Company can terminate this arrangemeartyatime.

The Company agreed to pay Mr. Gay $90,000 perfgeaerving on the Company’s Board of Directorsd &or being Chairman of the Company’s
Audit and Ethics Committees.
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On February 14, 2003, Mr. Joffe accepted his caipesition as President and Chief Executive Offineaddition to serving as Chairman of the Board
of Directors. Mr. Joffe’s agreement, which was ovidly scheduled to expire on March 31, 2006, chfta an annual base salary of $500,000, the
continuation of his prior agreement relative tompawnt of 1% of the value of any transactions whicise by March 31, 2006 and other compensation
generally provided to the Company'’s other execustadf members.

On April 22, 2005, the Company entered into an ainent to its employment agreement with Mr. Joffader the amendment, Mr. Joffe’s term of
employment was extended from March 31, 2006 to k&t 2008. His base salary, bonus arrangementsat#action fee right and fringe benefits
remained unchanged. This amendment was unanimapplyved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Before the amendment, Mr. Joffe had the right tmbeate his employment upon a change of controlrandive his salary and benefits through March
31, 2006. Under the amendment, upon a change tfotdwhich has been redefined pursuant to the amemt), Mr. Joffe will be entitled to a sale
bonus equal to the sum of (i) two times his batagplus (ii) two times his average bonus earredlie two years immediately prior to the change of
control. The amendment also grants Mr. Joffe thbktrio terminate his employment with effect on fbeathe one year anniversary of a change of
control and to then receive salary and benefitafoneyear period following such termination plus a borgsal to the average bonus Mr. Joffe ea
during the two years immediately prior to his vaany termination.

If Mr. Joffe is terminated without cause or resigmsgood reason (as defined in the amendment)Ctmapany must pay Mr. Joffe (i) his base salary,
(i) his average bonus earned for the two yearsediately prior to termination (or, if such termiigett occurs within the first three months of the
Company'’s fiscal year, for the second and thirdy@aeceding the year in which such terminatioruegx and (iii) all other benefits payable to Mr.
Joffe pursuant to the employment agreement, as @edethrough the later of two years after the datermination of employment or March 31, 20
Under the amendment, Mr. Joffe is also entitledrt@dditional “gross-up” payment to offset the sediaxes (and related income taxes on the “gross-
up” payment) that he may be obligated to pay wapect to the first $3,000,000 of “parachute paysigas defined in Section 280G of the Code) to
be made to him upon a change of control. The amentlivas redefined the term “for cause” to apply @almisconduct in connection with Mr. Jofée’
performance of his duties. Pursuant to the amentjraap options that have been or may be grantdrtdoffe will fully vest upon a change of coni
and be exercisable for a two-year period followtimg change of control, and Mr. Joffe agreed to wale right he previously had under the
employment agreement to require the Company tohasee his option shares and any underlying optidnis employment were terminated for any
reason. The amendment further provides that Mfe3o&greement not to compete with the Companyiteates at the end of his employment term.

In December 2006, the Company’s employment agreewigémMr. Joffe was amended to extend the terrthizf agreement from March 31, 2008 to
August 30, 2009. This amendment was unanimouslyoapp by the Company’s Board of Directors.

On March 27, 2008, the Company’s employment agreemigh Mr. Joffe was further amended to extendtdren of this agreement from August 30,
2009 to August 31, 2012. All other terms and cdad# of Mr. Joffe’s employment remained unchanddds amendment was unanimously approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors.

On December 31, 2008, the Company entered intoremded and restated employment agreement withd#fe. Mr. Joffe’s previous employment
agreement was amended and restated primarily tteaddage that satisfies the requirements of the freasury regulations issued pursuant to Se
409A of the Code with respect to certain of therpagts that may be provided to Mr. Joffe pursuatihéoemployment agreement. The restated
agreement does not increase the amounts payaldlle foffe as salary, bonus, severance or other eosgiion, nor does it extend the term of
employment, but it does clarify that if the Compaesminates the restated agreement without caither éirectly or constructively, Mr. Joffe will be
entitled to receive severance payments until ttex taf (i) that date which is two years after teetination date or (ii) the date upon which theates
agreement would otherwise have expired. All otlubristantive terms and conditions of Mr. Joffe’s emyphent remain unchanged. The restated
agreement was unanimously approved by the Comp&uoasd of Directors.
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22. Subsequent Event

During fiscal 2011, the Company made secured loatte approximate aggregate amount of $4,863,00&hco, a privately-owned Toronto-based
manufacturer, remanufacturer and distributor of aev remanufactured aftermarket auto parts. In@ction with this loan, the Company had an
option to acquire a substantial ownership intere§enco. On May 6, 2011, the Company exerciseddption and entered into and consummated the
transactions pursuant to a purchase agreemeritRtiiehase Agreement”) with FAPL Holdings Inc. (“FAR and certain other individuals. In
connection with this acquisition, the Company adeahan additional $10,000,000 to Fenco. Pursuahet®urchase Agreement, the Company
purchased (i) all of the outstanding equity of Fereccorporation incorporated under the laws ofa@ot (ii) all of the outstanding equity of Intrata
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Introcan”), and)(ii?o of the outstanding equity of Fapco S.A. de.CaMexican variable capital company (“Fapco”).
Since Fenco owned 99% of Fapco, the Company nove d96% of Fapco.

In consideration for the acquisition, the Compassued FAPL 360,000 shares of our common stocK'{iRA Shares”). For a period of 18 months
following the closing of the acquisition, the MPA&es shall be (i) subject to transfer restrictipnssuant to a Hold Agreement between the Company
and FAPL, dated May 6, 2011 (the “Hold Agreemerdi)d (ii) held in escrow in order to secure certademnification obligations under the Purchase
Agreement pursuant to an Escrow Agreement by arahgrRAPL, Stikeman Elliott LLP, certain other indiuals, and the Company, dated May 6,
2011 (the “Escrow Agreement”).

In connection with the acquisition and the secdoaths made to Fenco, the Company has incurred @80 @xpenses related to legal, accounting, and
valuation services during fiscal 2011, which arfterted in operating expenses. Additional feesanmection with the closing of the transaction il
recorded as expenses in the first quarter of fid8&R as incurred.

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyisvrwholly-owned subsidiaries, Fenco and Introcaha@rrowers (the “Fenco Borrowers”), entered
into an amended and restated credit agreemend Wg 6, 2011 (the “Fenco Credit Agreement”) witlaiifacturers and Traders Trust Company as
lead arranger, M&T Bank as lender and administeasigent and the other lenders from time to timéyghereto (the “Lenders”Pursuant to the Fen
Credit Agreement, the Lenders have made availaltleet Fenco Borrowers a revolving credit facilitythe maximum principal amount of $50,000,(
(the “Revolving Facility”) and a term loan in thenxipal amount of $10,000,000 (the “Term Loan"heTavailability of the Revolving Facility is
subject to a borrowing base calculation consistihgligible accounts receivable and eligible inwvent

The Fenco Borrowers may receive advances unddRekielving Facility by any one or more of the follioy options: (i) swingline advances in
Canadian or US dollars; (ii) Canadian dollar prib@esed loans; (iii) US dollar base rate loans; (iBOR loans; or (v) letters of credits.

The Term Loan bears interest at the LIBO rate plugpplicable margin. Outstanding advances un@eRévolving Facility bear interest as follows:
@) in respect of swingline advances in Canadiallars and Canadian dollar prime-based loartheateference rate announced by the
Royal Bank of Canada plus an applicable mar
(i)  inrespect of swingline advances in USlaa and US dollar base rate loans, at a baséwaieh shall be equal to the highest of (x)
M&T Bank’s prime rate, (y) the Federal Funds Rate plus ¥Wafor (z) the one month LIBO rate) plus an applieanargin;
(iii)  in respect of LIBOR loans, at the LIBO rate plusagplicable margir
The Fenco Credit Agreement, among other thingsjireg the Fenco Borrowers to maintain certain fai@ncovenants.

The Revolving Facility and the Term Loan matureGmiober 6, 2012, but may be accelerated upon ther@nce of an insolvency event or event of
default under the Fenco Credit Agreement.
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In connection with the Fenco Credit Agreement,@loenpany loaned Fenco an additional $10,000,00@imgnthe aggregate amount of indebtedness
owed by Fenco to the Company to $14,863,000.

The preliminary allocation of purchase price isomplete at this time. As a result, we are unabkltrate fair value to the acquired businessiat th
time.

23. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quartengrfcial data for the fiscal year ended March 31,12

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 36,234,000 $ 40,977,000 $ 41,288,000 $ 42,786,000
Cost of goods sold 24,689,000 28,295,00 28,115,00 28,804,00
Gross profit 11,545,00 12,682,00 13,173,00 13,982,00
Operating expense
General and administrati\ 4,024,00! 3,571,00! 4,384,00! 5,054,00!
Sales and marketir 1,740,001 1,201,001 1,798,001 1,798,001
Research and developme 366,00( 396,00( 391,00( 396,00(
Acquisition costs - - - 879,00(
Total operating expenses 6,130,001 5,168,001 6,573,001 8,127,001
Operating incomu 5,415,001 7,514,001 6,600,001 5,855,001
Other expense (income
Interest expens 1,602,001 1,724,001 1,070,001 1,199,001
Interest income - (23,000 (73,000 (144,000
Income before income tax exper 3,813,00! 5,813,00! 5,603,00! 4,800,001
Income tax expense 1,293,001 2,312,001 1,842,001 2,362,001
Net income $ 2,520,000 $ 3,501,000 $ 3,761,000 $ 2,438,00
Basic net income per share $ 021 $ 0.2¢ $ 031 $ 0.2C
Diluted net income per share $ 021 $ 0.2¢ $ 03C $ 0.1¢
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The following summarizes selected quarterly finahdata for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 32,690,000 $ 39,437,000 $ 36,482,000 $ 38,616,00
Cost of goods sold 25,519,00 28,621,00 25,605,00 26,153,00
Gross profit 7,171,001 10,816,00 10,877,00 12,463,00
Operating expense
General and administrati\ 2,512,00! 3,462,00! 3,801,001 5,614,00!
Sales and marketir 1,272,001 1,535,001 1,548,001 1,664,001
Research and developme 334,00( 334,00( 355,00( 398,00(
Acquisition costs - 191,00( - -
Total operating expenses 4,118,00! 5,522,001 5,704,001 7,676,00!
Operating incomu 3,053,001 5,294,001 5,173,001 4,787,001
Other expense (income
Gain on acquisitiol - (1,331,001 - -
Interest expense 996,00( 974,00( 1,776,001 964,00(
Income before income tax exper 2,057,00! 5,651,00! 3,397,00! 3,823,00!
Income tax expense 862,00( 2,216,001 1,252,001 952,00(
Net income $ 1,195000 $ 3,435000 $ 2,145000 $ 2,871,00
Basic net income per share $ 0.1C $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.24
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1C $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.24

Quarterly and year-tdate computations of per share amounts are maeépendently. Therefore, the sum of per share amdontee quarters may n
agree with per share amounts for the year shoveweélsre in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Schedule Il— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Accounts Receivable— Allowance for doubtful accounts

Charge to
Balance at (recovery of)
beginning of bad debts Amounts Balance at
Years Ended March 31, Description period expense written off end of period
2011 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 1,141,000 $ (38,0000 $ 77,00 $ 1,026,001
2010 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 243,000 $ 898,000 $ - $ 1,14100
2009 Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 18,00( $ 225,000 $ - % 243,00(
Accounts Receivable— Allowance for customer-payment discrepancies
Balance at Charge to
beginning of  discrepancies Amounts Balance at
Years Ended March 31, Description period expense Processed end of period
2011 Allowance for customepayment discrepancic $ 553,000 $ 850,00( $ 755,000 $ 648,00(
2010 Allowance for custom-payment discrepancic $ 681,000 $ 182,000 $ 310,000 $ 553,00(
2009 Allowance for custome-payment discrepancic $ 492,000 $ 915,00( $ 726,000 $ 681,00(
Inventory — Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Provision for
Balance at excess and
beginning of obsolete Amounts Balance at
Years Ended March 31, Description period inventory written off end of period
2011 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,480,000 $ 1,804,000 $ 1,685000 $ 2,599,00
2010 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,181,000 $ 878,000 $ 579,00 $ 2,480,00i
2009 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $ 2,762,000 $ 36,000 $ 617,00 $ 2,181,00
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Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries
MVR Products Pte. Limited, a company organized utige laws of Singapore
Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., a company organized under the lefAMalaysia
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a compamanized under the laws of Mexico

Motorcar Parts of Canada, Inc., a company organizei@r the laws of Canada




Exhibit 23.0
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 No.’s 333-1143839-103313, and 333-144883) pertaining to
the Long Term Incentive Plan, 1994 Stock OptiomP#nd 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Ptaspectively, of Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. of our reports dated June 13, 201th wespect to the consolidated financial statesiand schedule of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.
and the effectiveness of internal control overtiicial reporting of Motorcar Parts of America, limcluded in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended March 31, 2011.
/sl Ernst & Young LLF
Los Angeles, C/

June 13, 201




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Selwyn Joffe, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Meotr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or donittate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuntieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cieWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoies designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigyrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtid report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeregistrant’s Board of Directors (or persons perfmg the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 13, 2011 /sl Selwyn Joffe

Selwyn Joffe
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, David Lee, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Meotr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or donittate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuntieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cieWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoies designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigyrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtid report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeregistrant’s Board of Directors (or persons perfmg the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 13, 2011 /s/ David Lee

David Lee
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 31.3
CERTIFICATIONS
[, Kevin Daly, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Meotr Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or donittate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuntieh such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cieWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoies designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigyrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtid report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused, such internal control overritial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internalrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeregistrant’s Board of Directors (or persons perfmg the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 13, 2011 /s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officel




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINAN CIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of MotorcartBaf America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-#¢ the year ended March 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), |, Selwlgife, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, apsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OXewf 2002, to my knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the reguirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securleshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faiancondition and results of operations of the
Company.

s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

Chief Executive Office
June 13, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motorcart8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-& the year ended March 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorhe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Davigd,. Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, apsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OXewf 2002, to my knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securlieshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faiancondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Officel
June 13, 201

In connection with the Annual Report of Motorcart8af America, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-& the year ended March 31, 2011 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorthe date hereof (the “Annual Report;)Kevin Daly, Chief Accounting Officer of the Corapy,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, apsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OXewf 2002, to my knowledge, that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkeshange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Repaitly presents, in all material respects, the faiancondition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Officel
June 13, 201

The foregoing certifications are being furnishedh® Securities and Exchange Commission as paneciccompanying report on Form 10-K. A
signed original of each of these statements has perided to Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. ant be retained by Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.




